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Nova Wellness Group Berhad (“NOVA” or the “Company”) is an

The Company was listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities

investment holding company, and through its subsidiary (the

Malaysia Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) under the healthcare sector

“Group”), is principally involved in the development, production and

on 20 July 2018.

sales of nutraceutical products and skincare products under own
House Brands as well as providing contract manufacturing services
for the development and production of nutraceutical products.
Operating from our corporate office located in Sepang, the Group
distributes its products to 806 outlets throughout Malaysia. These

On 11 February 2021, the Company was successfully listed on the
Main Market of Bursa Securities.
Company No.: 198901002526
(179832-D)

retail outlets comprise of:
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•

Independent retail pharmacies

•

Clinics

•

Hospitals
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Our
Presence

OUR
BRANDS
OUR
PASSION

Perlis
Kedah

Penang

Kelantan

Terengganu

Perak

Integrity has always been one of the cornerstones of our values, and this continues
to drive our passion to deliver happiness and good health to our consumers.
We ensure our products are made with honesty, safety, and full consideration of
our consumers and the environment.
At NOVA, our R&D innovate to develop sustainable products to build healthier lives
for our consumers.

Sabah
Pahang
Selangor
Kuala
Lumpur

Negeri
Sembilan

Sarawak

Malacca
Johor

TM

Nov Tic
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Chairman’s
Statement

PROTECTING OUR PEOPLE
As pharmaceutical companies provide essential services,
we were allowed to operate during the government-imposed
Movement Control Order (“MCO”). To us at NOVA, this was
a privilege and we made the most of the opportunity to
contribute to the nation’s well-being. We recognised that, to
maintain our supply of products to the market, we had first
and foremost to protect our people, and this was given top
priority.
A COVID-19 Committee was set up to look into existing
pandemic plans as well as guidelines from the Ministry
of Health. As the authorities released new guidelines and
standard operating procedures (“SOPs”) for workplaces,
these were adopted. To ensure all SOPs were adhered to, we
conducted frequent audits and checks in the work premise.

contain and manage the pandemic. We did our small part
by contributing hand sanitisers, face masks and health
supplements to our frontliners and our local community.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
NOVA delivered a steady performance for our financial year
ended 30 June 2021. We achieved an increase in profit after
tax which came in at RM14.56 million, while profit before tax
grew to RM19.29 million.
Key drivers included strong demand for our products, along
with introduction of new products during the year. Earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”)
rose by 16.5% to RM19.80 million. Revenue increased
significantly to RM40.48 million, from the previous year’s
RM34.27 million, primarily arising from higher sales volume.

Despite operating throughout the MCO we faced our own
challenges. On the operations side, we had to contend with
COVID-19 cases amongst our employees, where fortunately
we were able to overcome through the resourcefulness
of our COVID-19 Committee and the team effort of the
management and all employees.
PROTECTING THE COMMUNITY
With COVID-19 in our midst, we are made even more aware
of our reason for being, namely to promote better health
and well-being. It is something that does not just drive
our business, but also influences the way we give back to
the community. This year, we demonstrated our corporate
stewardship by supporting efforts by the Government to
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This was accomplished despite rising material costs during
the pandemic, particularly due to shortage of key raw

2021
continuing to engage consumers through our online retail

At the upcoming Fifth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), the

platform.

Board will recommend a final dividend of 1.20 sen per share
single tier for shareholders’ approval, bringing the total

materials.

dividend for FYE2021 to 3.00 sen per share. This will amount
to a total payout of RM9.53 million, reflecting a payout ratio of

Market capitalisation stood at RM271.67 million while

65.5% of the profit after tax for FYE2021.

shareholders’ funds came in at RM93.94 million as of 30

our product portfolio and reach, while enhancing cost
and production efficiencies within the Group. We have
successfully launched and added 14 new products to our
portfolio. In FYE2021, the Group launched its slow carb
low glycemic index bread loaf and bun to the market. The
Group is looking forward to launch more new products to
accommodate the demand of growing market needs.

of our Group’s transfer listing to the Main Market of Bursa

employees, we were able to effectively contain the situation

2021 we have successfully completed our transfer listing to

and safeguard our other employees. As a result, although

the Main Market of Bursa Securities which marks a significant

operations were temporarily halted, there were no significant

milestone in the Group’s journey. This sets the stage for even

impact on the financial performance of the Group.

greater growth for the Group moving forward.

fully vaccinated and we are operating as usual with strict

Looking ahead, we are mindful of the challenging market
conditions. Notwithstanding this, we firmly believe that our
these

circumstances

while

capitalising

on

arising

RESPONDING TO COVID-19
Driving Operational Continuity Amidst the Pandemic

and evaluation to treatment of complex eye diseases.
The investment was subscribed at RM0.18 per share and
the market value at the end of FYE2021 was RM0.75 per
share. The investment is a value add to our Group as it will
strategically complement our long-term business plan.
Our Group managed to increase the total number of
distributors distributing our products throughout Malaysia
by 42.4% from 566 outlets in FYE2020 to 806 outlets in
FYE2021. These distributors include independent retail
pharmacies, hospitals, and clinics. We shall continuously
improve our retail market presence, including expansion of
our geographical footprint through frequent visits to new
potential areas to increase the number of distributors, while

21
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COVID-19 guidelines in place.
A key component of our preventive measures lies in the
fact that we have developed a proactive system to monitor,

opportunities. This is underpinned by our solid fundamentals,

manage and overcome potential COVID-19 cases. This is

strong capabilities and long-term growth prospects in the

achieved via the regular employee screening for COVID-19.

nutraceutical industry.

Through the screening, we have been able to take immediate
action to quarantine COVID-19 positive individuals. As an
added measure, we have undertaken precautionary mass
COVID-19 testing of all employees and continue to carry out

emphasis will be on sustaining market interests by growing our

which offers eyecare services ranging from general eyecare

As

we prepare this annual report, all of our employees are

remain as the major revenue contributor to our Group. Our

of Bursa Securities. TOPVISION is an eye specialist centre

entry screening procedures, temperature scanners at every

While we did experience COVID-19 cases amongst our

Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). On 11 February

Moving forward, our House Brand products are expected to

Berhad (“TOPVISION”), a company listed on the LEAP Market

sustained and effective awareness programmes, strict

groups of employees, to mitigate risk of contagion.

Another key milestone achieved in FYE2021 is the completion

to

continued to hold the investment in Topvision Eye Specialist

across our premises. This included physical distancing,

At Work initiative at the workplace, creating safe ‘bubbles’ for

ongoing strategic initiatives give us the ability to respond

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Nova Laboratories Sdn Bhd

Plan. Stringent precautionary measures were implemented

sanitisation of common areas. We also implemented our Safe

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS

initiatives with a focus on the fundamentals by expanding

a COVID-19 Committee and COVID-19 Emergency Response

building entry points, staggered shift hours and frequent

June 2021. Net assets per share were RM0.30 sen.

During the FYE2021, we continued to drive our strategic

As part of our efforts to facilitate operations, we established

periodic testing. Further to this, the good living conditions

products portfolio and customer base, paying close attention

of our foreign workers’ accommodation have been key in

to consumer needs.

helping to contain the number of cases. We have also applied
team segregation at all levels of the Group, including foreign

Amidst the uncertainties and volatilities, the Group remains

workers, to minimise potential cross-exposure. In addition,

committed to meeting customer’s expectations and continued

to extend a helping hand during the pandemic, the Group

expansion of the Group’s capabilities to provide value-added

rolled out several initiatives to support the wider community.

products and services.

MAINTAINING GOOD GOVERNANCE

DIVIDENDS
NOVA is steadfast in our commitment to enhance value for
our shareholders. This is demonstrated through our yearly

The repercussions caused by COVID-19 have had a significant
impact across industries and sectors, with the various phases

dividend payments to our shareholders.

of the MCO and SOPs enforced to stop the spread of COVID-19,

Based on our performance, we declared an interim dividend of

COVID-19 variants. Amidst this difficult environment, we have

0.60 sen per share on 9 February 2021, which was paid out on

channeled a great deal of resources to protect our people,

5 March 2021. For the first time, to reward our shareholders for

mitigate disruptions to the business and ensure operational

the support, the Board on 9 February 2021 declared a special

continuity.

dividend of 1.20 sen per share, equivalent to RM3.81 million, for
the financial year ended 30 June 2021, thereby making a total
dividend of 1.80 sen per share paid for FYE2021 up to date.

compounded by new waves of cases and multiple strains of

At NOVA, we have been working diligently to enhance and
integrate all the required systems and frameworks to assure a
high level of governance. We recognise that good governance,
together with strong social citizenry and environmental
stewardship - in other words strong Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) principles - is critical not only to
our sustainability but that of important communities that
we serve and which also serves us. Guided by the Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”), we conducted our
Fourth AGM for the first time virtually in November 2020,
leveraging technology to facilitate the remote participation

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)
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of shareholders and their voting in absentia.
During the year in review, the Board also saw some changes
to its composition to adopt the best practices recommended
in the MCCG 2021. As per Practice 1.4 of the MCCG 2021,
I have ceased to be the member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. We
also saw the reduction in the number of Board members due
to the demise of Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar on 6
January 2021.
During the year in review, the Board also strengthened
our commitment towards doing business responsibly
by enhancing our internal governance processes. Whilst
the Board has laid down a solid foundation on corporate
governance for the Group, we remain fully committed
towards continuously improving the Group’s governance
practices and processes.
I am pleased to report that NOVA has applied and complied
with the relevant provisions of the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Companies Act 2016,
and the Corporate Governance Guide – 3rd Edition issued by
Bursa Securities. Additionally the Company has also applied
and complied with almost all practices enumerated in the
MCCG 2017 in which the status of the Company’s application
is reported in our Corporate Governance report which is
accessible to the public on the Company’s corporate website
at www.nova.my.
BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
We are a strong advocate on building a sustainable business.
It is essential to build a business that delivers excellent
results as well as building sustainable development goals
that addresses the environmental, social and governance
frameworks in our community. I would like to invite you
to read about our sustainability developments in our
sustainability statement.
MARKET OUTLOOK
With the gradual reopening of economic sectors and social
activities by end of 2021 and strong external demand,
Malaysia’s economic recovery is projected to continue well

2021
Containing the spread of the virus remains a priority and
with the Government’s National COVID-19 Immunisation
Programme now underway, the second half of the year is set
to see better progress in the nation’s economic recovery. With
regards to supply, the manufacturing and services sectors
are expected to continue driving economic growth with the
normalisation of economic activities.
In the long term, the global dietary supplements market is
projected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”)
of 8.6% from 2021 to 2028, according to Grand View Research.
The growth shall be propelled by a surge in worldwide demand

Our performance is also a direct consequence of our able
leadership. For this, I would like to thank our Group Managing
Director, Mr Phang Nyie Lin, for guiding the management
team and all our employees as we settled into a new way
of working without losing sight of our short and long-term
goals.
To my colleagues on the Board and the Board Committees,
thank you for your continued time and counsel which have
been even more valuable than ever in these challenging
times.

for health supplement products, as consumers take a more

Our deepest gratitude as well to our shareholders, business

proactive stance towards their health and well-being, especially

partners, and relevant regulatory authorities for their

following the COVID-19 pandemic. Zooming into Malaysia, the

steadfast support and trust.

growth of the domestic health supplement market shall be
driven by increasing awareness for proper nutrition intake and

On behalf of the Board, I would like to record our condolences

growing ageing population.

to the family of the late Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar

PROSPECT FOR 2022

on his demise. His invaluable contributions to the Group will
always be remembered.

The nutraceutical market holds much potential on the back of

Last but not least to all our valued stakeholders, thank you

growing household income and trends of increasing awareness

for your continued support and for being with us through

on general health and well-being. Our prospect appears to be

these difficult times. Stay safe. Stay healthy.

bright as we continue to execute our expansion plans in view of
a more favourable market sentiment in 2022.
Amid the uncertainty surrounding the stability of the global
economy, the business environment will remain challenging.
The Board and management will continue its efforts to improve

DR ABDUL MANAF BIN MOHAMAD RADZI
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

efficiency of its existing business and explore opportunities to
expand the business.
The Board is of the view that, barring unforeseen circumstances,
the financial performance and prospects of the Group will be
satisfactory in the next financial year.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
That we have maintained business ‘as normal as possible’ in
FYE2021 despite all the challenges is due to our brilliant team. I
would like to express a heartfelt thank you to all our employees
for living our corporate values thus enabling us not to just
survive the year but to continue to grow in important areas in a
manner that is meaningful.

into 2022. The World Bank has projected higher economic
growth of 5.8% in 2022 and 4.5% in 2023 for Malaysia.
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Management Discussion And
Analysis

Dietary supplements contributed RM24.03 million or 59.4%
to the total Group’s revenue for FYE2021 and recorded an
increase of RM5.62 million or 30.5% compared to FYE2020.

Statements of Comprehensive Income was mainly due to

Functional food products contributed RM8.53 million or

money market funds.

21.1% to the total Group’s revenue for FYE2021 and recorded

Dear Shareholders,

The decrease in other income or gains mentioned in the
lower interests earned from fixed deposits and placement in

an increase of RM3.37 million or 65.3% compared to FYE2020.

The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to

In terms of geographical coverage, 98.8% (FYE2020: 98.4%)

payment and upward revision in remuneration package for

We are grateful that financial year ended 30 June 2021

of the total Group’s revenue for the FYE2021 was sales

has been a very good year for us. Despite the negative

from local market and the remaining 1.2% (FYE2020: 1.6%)

impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy and

was sales from overseas customers. Local sales recorded

overall wellbeing of the people at large, we continue to

an increase of RM6.25 million or 18.5% when compared to

demonstrate resilience throughout the financial year by

FYE2020.

achieving another record group revenue and profit for the

higher staff cost incurred resulted from higher annual bonus
administrative staffs.
The increase in selling and distribution expenses were
mainly due to increase in marketing campaign expenses
incurred for our dealers; higher staff cost incurred for sales
and marketing staffs resulted from higher annual bonus and
upward revision in their remuneration package; and higher

year of RM40.48 million and RM14.56 million respectively.

transport and logistic costs.

This is a result of our continuous dedication in enhancing
our customers satisfaction and trust by providing them

The decrease in other expenses mentioned in the Statements

with quality products and services.

of Comprehensive Income were mainly due to impairment of
trade receivables and write down of slow-moving inventories

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

no longer required in the current financial year.

Revenue

The effective tax rate for the current financial year stood at

The Group revenue for the year recorded an increase of

The increase in the number of distributor outlets to 806

24.5% (FYE2020: 25.7%) and was slightly higher than the

18.1% or RM6.22 million when compared to the previous

(FYE2020: 566 outlets) also contributed to the overall

statutory rate of 24% mainly due to certain expenses which

financial year. The increase was mainly due to higher

increase in the total Group’s revenue.

were not allowable for tax deduction.

sales contribution from our house brand products under

The Group’s profit for the year increased by RM1.55 million

the dietary supplements and functional food categories.

or 11.9% when compared to the previous financial year. The

The composition of the Group’s revenue for the current

net margin for the year stood at 36.0% (FYE2020: 38.0%). The

year under review is as follows:

slight decrease was in line with the decrease in the gross
profit margin.
The earnings per share (“EPS”) for the current financial year
Income Statement Review

stood at 4.58 sen (FYE2020: 4.09 sen). A higher EPS was
consistent with the increase in the profit for the year.

The Group recorded an increase in the gross profit of RM2.93
million or 11.0% when compared to the previous financial
year. Gross profit margin for the current financial year stood
at 72.9% (FYE2020: 77.6%). The decrease in the gross profit
margin of 4.7% was mainly due to higher raw material costs

PHANG NYIE LIN

incurred for production.

Group Managing Director
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Balance Sheet Review
The increase in the carrying value of the property, plant
and equipment was mainly due to the construction of the
Phase 2 GMP manufacturing plant covering a double-storey
production facility. The Phase 1 GMP manufacturing plant
have been commissioned for operations during the financial
year.

additional

The Group demonstrates its appreciation for the long-

and cash equivalents balance stood at RM27.69 million. The

standing support of its shareholders by rewarding them with

placement in money market funds represented 93.8% of the

dividends yearly since its listing on Bursa Securities in 2018.

total cash and cash equivalents and yielded an annualised

Our ability to declare dividend in the future years will depend

tax-exempt interest of approximately 1.6% to 1.9%. During

on factors such as the Group’s cash flow position, having

the financial year, RM9.08 million cash was generated

adequate distributable reserves and general performance of

from operating activities, RM5.76 million cash was used in

the Group. The Board will take into consideration all these

investing activities and RM8.52 million cash was used in

factors when recommending future dividends.

financing activities resulted in a net change in cash and cash

The increase in intangible assets was mainly due
to

As at the end of the current financial year, the Group’s cash

research and development expenditure

capitalised during the financial year. Upon commencement
of the commercial production of a product, the capitalised
development expenditure will be amortised on a straightline basis over the period of its expected revenue to be
derived from the respective products. The carrying value
in the balance sheet covers 50 (FYE 2020: 43) research and
development projects which includes the second clinical trial
for Hepar-P.
The other investment comprises 6,666,667 ordinary shares
invested in Topvision Eye Specialist Berhad (“TOPVISION”),
a company listed on the LEAP Market of Bursa Securities.
Our intention is to hold this investment on a long-term basis.
We believe having a stake in TOPVISION will strategically
complement our long-term business plan as both of us are
in the healthcare business. The increase in the carrying value
of other investment was mainly due to increase in the closing
market price per share of the underlying investment from
54.5 sen at the end of the previous financial year to 75.0 sen
at the end of the current financial year.
The increase in the inventories balance was mainly due to

equivalents of RM5.19 million.
LOOKING FORWARD TO 2022

APPRECIATION
On behalf of my fellow Board members, I truly wish to
express my sincere appreciation and gratitude to our valued

We expect our growth momentum will continue to carry

shareholders, customers, business partners, and suppliers

into the new financial year despite the ongoing COVID-19

for their continued support, invaluable trust and unwavering

pandemic. The numbers of vaccinations among the general

confidence in the Group over the past years.

public have been encouraging and the numbers of cases are
showing sign of improvement. More and more economic
sectors are slowly reopening after periods of continuous
lockdown. This will lead to increase in economic activities
and eventually stimulate consumer spending. There has
been an increased in awareness among the public on the
importance of strengthening the body immunity by taking
appropriate supplements and maintaining good personal
hygiene throughout the COVID-19 pandemic.
DIVIDEND

I would like to record our deepest condolences to the family
of our Board member, the late Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul
Sattar on his demise on 6 January 2021. His invaluable
contributions and dedication to the Group will always be
remembered.
Last but not least, my sincere gratitude and heartfelt thanks
to my fellow members of the Board, key senior management
and all employees for their continued and invaluable support,
contributions and commitments in leading the Group to
greater heights.

The Board is pleased to recommend a final single tier
dividend of 1.20 sen per ordinary share in respect of FYE2021
amounting to RM3,812,926 for the approval of shareholders
at the forthcoming Fifth Annual General Meeting of the

PHANG NYIE LIN

Company to be convened on 16 November 2021.

Group Managing Director

increase in raw materials purchased to ensure continuous

The Board had earlier declared an interim and special single

supply of raw materials during various MCO phases;

tier dividends of 0.60 sen and 1.20 sen per ordinary share

purchasing raw materials in bulk quantity also enable us

respectively which amounted to RM5,719,389 and was paid

to benefit from competitive pricing from suppliers; and

to the shareholders on 5 March 2021. Therefore, the total

to facilitate the increase in production capacity from the

dividend proposed or paid for FYE2021 would be 3.00 sen per

newly commissioned Phase 1 GMP manufacturing plant with

ordinary share which represents 65.5% of the Group’s profit

anticipation of increase in demand for our products.

for the year.

The increase in net trade receivables from RM9.94 million in
FYE2020 to RM13.40 million at the end of the current financial
year was in line with the increase in the Group’s revenue. We
have considered the impact of COVID-19 when assessing the
adequacy of the impairment of trade receivables under MFRS
9. Based on the aging of the trade receivables disclosed in
Note 29 of the Financial Statements, 55.2% of the total net
trade receivables are still not past due for payments and
17.1% of the total net trade receivables are below 30 days
past due for payments.
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Profile of
Board of Directors
Phang Nyie Lin was appointed to the Board on 31 October

Phang Yeen Nung was appointed to the Board on 31 October

2017 as the Group Managing Director.

2017 as an Executive Director.

He holds a Bachelor of Pharmacy from Science University of

He holds a Bachelor of Laws from University of Kent, United

Malaysia. He started his career as a pharmacist trainee in the

Kingdom. He started his career as a Marketing Executive in

pharmacy department of Ipoh General Hospital, Perak (now

Nova Laboratories.

known as Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun). He became a
Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi was appointed to the Board on 31

registered pharmacist with the Ministry of Health after he

October 2017 as an Independent Non-Executive Chairman.

completed his training in 1981. In 1983, he was transferred

He holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Physical Chemistry and minor in

Department of Respiratory Medicine, Hospital Kuala Lumpur)

Inorganic Chemistry from University of Tennessee, Knoxville, United
States of America.
Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi started his career in 1977 as a
researcher at the chemistry laboratory in Northern Illinois University. In
1988 he joined ICI Fertilizers Sdn Bhd as a Technical Executive and was
promoted to Marketing Executive in 1990. In 1992, he joined PETRONAS
Petroleum Research Institute (now known as PETRONAS Research &
Scientific Services Sdn Bhd) as an Agrochemical Executive. In 1994, he
was transferred to the Malaysian International Trading Corporation Sdn
Bhd (a subsidiary of PETRONAS Research Sdn Bhd) as a trader for urea
and agrochemicals in Vietnam.
In 1995, he joined FRC Manufacturing (M) Sdn Bhd as a Technical
Executive. In 1996, he joined ACP Industries Berhad as the Manager
for special projects division. In 2004 he joined the education sector
and became a lecturer in Sunway College. In 2005, he joined Chemical
Company of Malaysia Berhad as the Group Market Development Manager
and was promoted to Senior Manager in 2006. In 2007, he was promoted
as the General Manager of CCM Duopharma Biotech Berhad (a subsidiary
of Chemical Company of Malaysia Berhad).
In 2009, he joined Innovax Sdn Bhd as the Chief Scientific Officer. In

to the National Tuberculosis Centre (now known as the
to serve as a pharmacist. In 1985, he left the National
Tuberculosis Centre to set up Farmasi Sepadu, a community
pharmacy in Sungai Pelek, Selangor, which was involved in
the distribution of animal health products to livestock farms.

In 2014, he was promoted to Business Development Director
and in that capacity was responsible for identifying new
business opportunities.
Directorship in other public companies and listed issuers:
Nil
Family Relationship with Directors and/or Major Shareholders:
Son of Tan Sok Mooi (Major Shareholder) and Phang Nyie

In 1989, he established Nova Laboratories Sdn Bhd.

Lin (Group Managing Director/Chief Research Officer)

As the Group Managing Director, he is responsible for

Phang Yeen Hung (Promoter)

providing the strategic direction and overseeing the overall
business operations of our Group. He also holds the position

Brother of Phang Yeen Aun (Executive Director) and
Cousin of Tan Kiat Wei (Chief Production Officer)

of Chief Research Officer and is responsible for overseeing
all R&D activities including conceptualising ideas for new
product developments and re-formulation of existing
products.
Directorship in other public companies and listed issuers:
Nil
Family Relationship with Directors and/or Major Shareholders:
Spouse of Tan Sok Mooi (Major Shareholder)
Father of Phang Yeen Nung and Phang Yeen Aun
(Executive Directors)
Father of Phang Yeen Hung (Promoter)
Uncle of Tan Kiat Wei (Chief Production Officer)

2010, he joined Malaysian Bioeconomy Development as the Senior VicePresident of its Industrial Division. In 2015, he served as the Senior VicePresident of the University-Industry Partnership Division in Malaysian
Bioeconomy Development. He also served as a member of the Scientific
Advisory Board of Bioalpha Holdings Berhad before retiring in 2017.
Directorship in other public companies and listed issuers:
Nil
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Phang Yeen Aun was appointed to the Board on 31 October

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng was appointed to the

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad was appointed to the Board on

Tan Mio Har was appointed to the Board on 31 October 2017

2017 as an Executive Director.

Board on 31 October 2017 as an Independent Non-

31 October 2017 as the Non-Independent Non-Executive

as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

Executive Director. He is the Chairman of the Audit

Director.

He holds a Bachelor of Pharmacy from International Medical
University, Malaysia. He started his career as a pharmacist
trainee in the pharmacy department of Hospital Tuanku

Committee and Risk Management Committee, and a
member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees.

She holds a Diploma in Business Studies in Accounting

He holds a Bachelor of Pharmacy from the Science University

from Tunku Abdul Rahman College, Malaysia. She has

of Malaysia. He became a registered pharmacist with the

been a member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Ja’afar, Seremban. In 2011, he joined Nova Laboratories as

He is a chartered accountant and has been a member

Ministry of Health after he completed his training in 1982.

Accountants since 2011 and was admitted as a fellow of

a Marketing Executive and in that capacity was responsible

of Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants

He started his career as a pharmacist in the manufacturing

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in May 2016.

for developing and executing new marketing plans and

(“MICPA”) (previously known as Malaysian Association of

unit of the Sabah Central Medical Store and Hospital Queen

She has also been a member of the Malaysian Institute of

promotion campaigns for our products and the “NOVA” brand

Certified Public Accountants) since May 1994, Malaysian

Elizabeth, Sabah in 1982. In 1985, he was transferred to the

Accountants since 2016.

in the industry.

Institute of Accountants since March 1995 and Certified

National Pharmaceutical Control Bureau (now known as

Practising

National Pharmaceutical Regulatory Agency) as an Analytical

In 2012, he served as the Managing Director of Nutraphyll

Accountant

Australia

since

March

2008.

Pharmacist responsible for product analysis.

She started her career as an Auditor with Adrian Yeo & Co in
2007 where she performed auditing work on companies in

where he was responsible for providing the strategic

He started his career as an Auditor with a big four accounting

direction and overseeing the overall business operations.

firm from 1988 until 2004. In 2004, he admitted as a Partner

In 1990, he was promoted to Senior Pharmacist and was

Gold Corporation Sdn Bhd as an Internal Audit Executive

Nutraphyll owned and operated six retail outlets exclusively

of an accounting firm, R.K. & Associates. In 2007, he

subsequently transferred to the GMP division of the National

where she performed risk-based internal audits and reviewed

selling our House Brand products. Nutraphyll was previously

joined Eaton Industries Pty. Ltd. (Australia) as a Corporate

Pharmaceutical Control Bureau as a GMP Auditor responsible

the suitability and compliance of the company’s internal

controlled by our Promoters through their shareholdings and

Accountant where he was tasked to coordinate the company’s

for conducting GMP audits. In 2005, he was promoted to

control policies and procedures.

directorships in Nutraphyll until August 2017.

world-wide restructuring exercise. He was transferred to

Head of Department of Compliance and Licensing for the

Shanghai Eaton Engine Components Ltd, China in 2009 as

GMP division.

In 2017, he left Nutraphyll and joined our Group as the
Executive Director.
Directorship in other public companies and listed issuers:
Nil
Family Relationship with Directors and/or Major Shareholders:
Son of Tan Sok Mooi (Major Shareholder) and Phang Nyie
Lin (Group Managing Director/Chief Research Officer)
Brother of Phang Yeen Nung (Executive Director) and
Phang Yeen Hung (Promoter)
Cousin of Tan Kiat Wei (Chief Production Officer)

a Financial Controller. He joined The BIG Group Sdn Bhd in
January 2012 as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer before leaving in 2013. During his time at The BIG
Group Sdn Bhd, he was primarily responsible for the finance
and information technology functions of the company and
day-to-day operations which also includes new restaurant
openings. In 2013, he was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of Petrol One Resources Berhad. In 2019, he left Petrol
One Resources Berhad and joined Silverpack Sdn Bhd as the
Chief Financial Officer, a position he assumes to present.
Over the years, he has accumulated extensive experience not

various industries. In 2009, she left the company to join Palm

In 2012, she left Palm Gold Corporation Sdn Bhd and joined
ST Rock Blasting Sdn Bhd as an Accountant where her

In 2008, he was transferred to Hospital Klang, Selangor as

responsibilities include handling financial accounts and

Chief Pharmacist and the Head of its pharmacy department.

taxation matters as well as preparing analytical reviews of

In 2009, he was transferred to Hospital Raja Permaisuri

the company’s finance operations, a position she still holds.

Bainun, Perak as Chief Pharmacist and the Head of its
pharmacy department. In 2010, he was promoted and
transferred back to National Pharmaceutical Control Bureau

Directorship in other public companies and listed issuers:
Nil

as Deputy Director to lead its GMP and licensing division. He
retired from his role as Deputy Director in 2016.
Directorship in other public companies and listed issuers:
Nil

only in supervising financial audit and reporting accountant
projects for corporate exercises like mergers, acquisitions
and IPO, he also oversees overall finance function and daily
business operations as Chief Financial Officer.
Directorship in other public companies and listed issuers:
Pentamaster International Limited (Independent NonExecutive Director)
Ramssol Group Berhad (Independent Non-Executive

1. Family Relationship with Directors and/or
Major Shareholders

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors
of NOVA has any family relationship with other
Directors and/or major shareholders of the
Company.

2. Conflict of Interest

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors
have any conflict of interest with the Company.

3. Conviction for Offences (other than traffic
offences)

None of the Directors had conviction for offences
(other than traffic offences) within the past
five (5) years or been imposed with any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the FYE2021.

4. Attendance at Board Meetings

Details of the Directors’ attendance at the
Board meetings are set out in the Corporate
Governance Overview Statement in this
annual report.

5. Details of Shareholdings

Details of the Shareholdings of the Directors
in the Company are set out in the Analysis of
Shareholdings in this annual report.

Director)
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Tribute To

The Late Professor Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar
The Board and Management would like to pay tribute
to the late Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar who
departed peacefully on 6 January 2021. Dr Munavvar
Zubaid was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group on 31 October 2017.
He was a person full of courage, determination and passion,
and his commitment to the Group was unwavering. Dr
Munavvar was a warm person who could strike up a
conversation with anyone at any level. A man of strong
principles, the NOVA family will always remember him for his
work ethics and integrity as well as his relentless insistence
on quality in everything we do.
Besides serving on the Board of Nova Wellness Group
Berhad, he also served as a Professor and Dean of School
of Pharmaceutical Sciences, Science University of Malaysia
(USM) and subsequently as a Professor and Dean of Faculty
of Pharmacy at MAHSA University College until his demise.
He has phenomenal passion in research and has published
more than 160 research papers in highly reputed academic
journals.
The Board and Management would like to extend their
deepest condolences to the family of the late Dr Munavvar
Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar and wish to express their heartfelt
appreciation for his dedicated service and unwavering
commitment in guiding the Group. He is held in high regard
in the Group’s organisation and his departure is a great loss
to the Group. He will be greatly missed.

1955 - 2021

35

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

36

ANNUAL
REPORT

Key Senior Management
2021

37

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

ANNUAL
REPORT

2021

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

38

ANNUAL
REPORT

ANNUAL
REPORT

2021

2021

Sustainability
Statement

As we cultivate a culture of care, we aim
to continue incorporating sustainability
elements in everything we do, creating
value for all our stakeholders.

With sustainability at our core, NOVA is firmly committed to continue building on our strong foundation of responsible
growth. This enables us to strengthen our foothold in the market and create greater value for our stakeholders, while
bringing positive impact to society.
Guided by our core values, we strive to do the right thing at all times.
Toward this end, our sustainability efforts are premised on Economic, Environmental, Social and Governance
considerations, focusing on four key pillars:

39

Safeguarding the
environment

Contributing to the
wellbeing of local
communities

Caring for our
employees

Upholding the highest
standards in our
business practices and
product quality
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About Our
Sustainability Statement

Sustainability
Framework

We believe that as a company, we must take responsibility for the impact of our business on the society and
be held accountable for it. We believe that for a company to be successful and create long term value for the
shareholders, sustainable development must be incorporated in all aspects of the business value chain. Thus,
we are actively managing our commitment to the Economic, Environmental, Society and Governance (“EESG”)
sustainability, in our mission to create a sustainable business that is positioned for long term success.

SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK
We view sustainability or sustainable development as a business imperative, and this means looking beyond financial
profitability by balancing economic, social, environmental and governance considerations in making sound business
decisions.

This Sustainability Statement highlights the key EESG initiatives undertaken by the Company during the year
under review. We progressively continue to evaluate and make adjustments to our approach to sustainability
in order to achieve our goals.

OUR SCOPE
Information in this Statement covers the sustainability
efforts undertaken by the Group, throughout the 12-month
period from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021. Views and feedback
from our various stakeholders have been compiled to help us
identify, prioritise and address material sustainability issues
in our business strategies. We endeavour to report issues
that are material to the Group and our stakeholders, as
determined through analyses of wide variety of sources such
as NOVA policies, benchmarking results, internal documents
comprising enterprise risks, internal auditors reports,
surveys, engagements and interactions with stakeholders.
We acknowledge that there is room for improvement in our
disclosure, and we are committed to the monitoring and
reporting on our sustainability activities each successive
year.
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OUR SUPPORT FOR UNITED NATIONS
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

In managing our approach to sustainability, we also ensure

Good corporate governance and transparency are intrinsic to achieve responsible and sustainable growth. Our sustainability

high degree of alignment with the United Nations Sustainable

governance practices are vital in creating a robust structure and framework to drive our sustainability agenda forward.

Development Goals (“SDGs”) where relevant. In line with
the 17 SDGs and as per our materiality matrix, we have

The Group has established a clear governance structure to ensure that all sustainability measures and efforts are carried out

determined 10 out of 17 SDGs by mapping material matters

effectively. Driven from the top, the Board of Directors holds the highest authority in the Group and is ultimately responsible for

which we believe will allow us to have the most meaningful

the Group’s sustainability performance. The Board ensures that sustainability is practised across all business operations.

impact to the business and our stakeholders.

The Group Managing Director leads the implementation of sustainability efforts within the Group and works with the
Management team to review existing efforts for continuous improvement, along with providing oversight for the Group’s
sustainability risks and opportunities. The Sustainable Development Working Group is trusted to guide us in meeting our
economic, social, and environmental sustainability goals as well as ensuring compliance to governance. In ensuring that
sustainability issues are taken into account across all our products and services, the Group Managing Director heads the
Sustainable Development Working Group, whose members consist of representatives from all the business unit support
functions within the Group.
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Commitment To
Stakeholder Engagement

Key
Stakeholder
Government
and
Regulators

Method and Frequency
of Engagement

Key Topics and
Concerns

Our Response

Meetings

Regulatory compliance

On-site
inspections

Job creation

Correspondence

Safety compliance for
COVID-19

Our robust engagement approach enables us to maintain

Social activities

Labour rights

strong relationships with our key stakeholders, comprising

Industry group
and local council
meetings

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

those who have influence on and interests in our business
operations. Given NOVA’s role in the healthcare sector and
manufacturing industry, effective engagement with our

Shareholders
and Investors

stakeholders is instrumental to allow us to progress in our
sustainability journey.

Socioeconomic
Compliance
Environmental
compliance
Business ethics and
governance

Governance policies and
systems in place

Governance policies and
systems in place

Business ethics
and governance

Reporting

Provide quality
accommodation in
accordance with Act
446 Workers’ Minimum
Standards of Housing
and Amenities

Provide quality
accommodation in
accordance with Act
446 Workers’ Minimum
Standards of Housing
and Amenities

Human rights

Business continuity

Professional approach
in reviewing suppliers’
proposals

Supply chain
management

Corporate website

valuable insights and perspectives on material matters of

Strict adherence to
laws and regulations
as well as applicable
standards through
reliable reporting and
monitoring checklist

Annual general
meeting
Analyst engagement

Through proactive engagements, we are able to gain

Link to Material
Matter

most relevance to key stakeholders, and subsequently align

Market presence

our priorities and sustainability efforts accordingly to deliver
Contractors/
Vendors/
Suppliers

long-term value.

Meetings

Fair and transparent
selection of suppliers

A summary of our key stakeholders and stakeholder engagement efforts during the year under review is as follows.
Key
Stakeholder
Customers

Method and Frequency
of Engagement
Meetings

Key Topics and
Concerns
Customer satisfaction or
relationship management
Responsible supply chain
and reliability of supply
Regulatory compliance
Human rights and fair
labour practices
Anti-corruption and
anti-bribery
Pricing

Employees

Performance
appraisals
Induction programmes
Engagement sessions

Career development
Health and safety
Human rights and fair
labour practices
Employee engagement
Employee welfare and
benefits

Our Response

Customer satisfaction
and relationship
management

Supplier Code of
Conduct

Supply chain
management

Anti-Bribery and AntiCorruption Policy

Human rights

Whistleblowing Policy

Business ethics and
governance

Provide competitive
pricing
Provide job-related
training

Employee
management

COVID-19 prevention
measures, and health
and safety measures

Health and safety

Strict adherence to
labour rights laws

Product specification and
quality expectations

Strict payment cycles
and procedures

Timely payment

Link to Material
Matter

Timely response
towards customers’
concerns and interests

Business ethics

Support local
employment throughout
supply chain

Business ethics and
governance
Product quality and
innovation

Communication of
Anti-Bribery and AntiCorruption Policy
Communication of
product and quality
expectations
Local
Communities

Corporate social
responsibility
programmes
Local council
meetings

Job creation
Environmental impact
and compliance
Community engagement
and investment

Support local
employment
Strict adherence to
environmental-related
laws and standards

Local communities
Market presence
Environmental
compliance

Charitable donations

Human rights
Market presence

Annually

Quarterly

Ongoing

As needed

Communication
platforms and
engagement frequency
Provision of
remuneration and
various employee
benefits
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FYE2021 has been particularly challenging due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In dealing with disruption on a scale never before
seen, we was swift in turning to the use of technology to market products and engage with customers through online platforms
and digitalise processes for greater operational effectiveness and efficiency.
We are grateful that FYE2021 has been a very good year for us. Despite the negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
economy and overall wellbeing of the people at large, we continue to demonstrate resilience throughout the financial year by
achieving another record group revenue and profit for the year of RM40.48 million and RM14.56 million respectively. This is a
result of our continuous dedication in enhancing our customers satisfaction and trust by providing them with quality products
and services.
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Talent Management
At NOVA, we promote diversity and treat our employees fairly, regardless of age,
gender, race, religion and background. Our workforce has consistently consisted of
approximately 48% female and 52% male as at FYE2021. Female make up 35% of
our Senior Management whereas 14.3% of the members on our Board of Directors

Occupational Safety and Health

are female. The employees of NOVA form the bedrock of our success. To drive the

The COVID-19 pandemic has made an indelible mark on our daily lives and operations,
as it has for all businesses around the world. We believe in the safety of our employees
and also in our responsibility to maintain the safety of our customers and the

Group forward, we are committed to continuously strengthening our workforce with
a diverse and highly skilled talent pool. Today, NOVA’s human capital stands at over
100 people.

communities in which we operate. With this mindset, we formulated the COVID-19
Preventive Guidelines, a set of SOPs that govern how we work in the ‘new normal’. The guidelines was prepared in line with

We believe that diversity within the workforce enhances our competitive position. We

regulations issued by the Ministry of Health and Ministry of International Trade and Industry. Recommended practices such as

people should be treated and evaluated based only on work performance.

physical distancing, wearing of face masks, and maintaining hygienic practices are all detailed in the Guidelines.
Going beyond regulatory requirements, our safety measures also include operational training and inspection, as well as

are committed to provide equal opportunities across the Group as we believe that our

The Group’s workforce composition demonstrates our efforts in promoting diversity
and equality in the workplace.

knowledge sharing sessions.
Employees undergo training on a regular basis, centered on raising our workforce’s awareness and competency with the aim of

We also place great emphasis in training and developing our

enhancing our emergency preparedness.

employees and despite the impediments to physical training
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, we again chose to

Scheduled meetings of the Health and Safety (“OSH”) Committee are held at predetermined interval in accordance with the rules
and regulations to monitor and report any incidents.

use online platforms to our benefit. Through delivering bite-

The Group strives to work towards its goals in achieving “A Zero Accident” workplace. We believe that all occupational injuries

up 72 training hours with 48.8% of employees attended training

sized online tutorials via Zoom platform, we managed to chalk

and work-related illnesses are preventable. Hence, our target is to prevent incidences as well as disruption at the workplace.

during FYE2021.

There was no major legal action taken against the Group and no any fine or monetary sanction imposed related to occupational
safety and health aspects during the FYE2021.

Occupational Safety and Health Initiatives

Conduct safety briefings
to educate on
potential hazards.

Equip employees with
proper Personal Protection
Equipment.

Develop processes
to analyse risk and
effectiveness of controls.

Develop an emergency
response plan.

Develop procedures to
promote safety practices
within operating sites.

OSH Committee to
conduct regular health
and safety audits.

We also conducted physical training with strict COVID-19

The Group also participated in the Biokerjaya @ My

SOPs in place. We managed to chalk up 38 training

Future Agro under the PENJANA initiative which provides

hours with 30.5% of employees attended training during

employment opportunities.

FYE2021.
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Prioritising Social Compliance

The protection of human rights is a fundamental principle for our Group. We advocate for the fair and ethical treatment of all
our people, regardless of background. Equality, diversity and inclusion are integral to our people practices and underpin our
commitment towards social compliance.
WE CARE FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT
As a conscientious and caring Group, we are committed to conducting business in a responsible manner. Given the nature of our

We strictly adhere to Malaysian labour laws and regulations. Our social compliance policies are also consistent with global
benchmarks against child labour and young workers, workplace discrimination, as well as forced labour.

operations which comprise manufacturing facilities, we have undertaken comprehensive measures to manage our resources
well and reduce our carbon footprint.
Towards this end, our efforts are premised on the following key areas:

To commit to protecting employees’ rights to have their dignity respected.

PERFORMING BEYOND
COMPLIANCE STANDARDS

WASTE
MANAGEMENT

EFFECTIVE ENERGY
MANAGEMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSERVATION ACTIVITIES

SOCIAL IMPACT

HUMAN DIGNITY
AND EQUALITY

NONDISCRIMINATION

To ensure working conditions will not infringe on employees’ dignity.
To condemn harassment in any form, and an act of harassment is a non-compliance against
our Code of Conduct and Ethics.
Freedom and security of employees will be respected by the Group.

To condemn unfair discrimination on the basis of race, gender, sex, marital status, ethnic or
social origin, sexual orientation, age, religion and political opinion.
To develop and provide training for employees enabling them to perform in line with the
Group’s values and principles.

Empowering Communities
We recognise our duty as a responsible corporate citizen. We aim to achieve sustained growth by creating shared value for our
stakeholders, including the nearby communities of where we operate.
During the FYE2021, we continued to reach out by participating and contributing in various initiatives focused on job creation,

To condemn the use of forced labour in employement.
FAIR LABOUR
PRACTICES

community outreach and charitable donations. Approximately RM0.10 million was contributed in FYE2021 to hospitals, clinics,

To adhere to recognised practices and principles regarding the employment of young
persons imposed by local legislation.
No workers of age under 18 shall be employed by the Group.
Termination of employees’ services will conform to requirements of lawfulness and fairness.

schools as well as welfare establishments and communities.
Investing in Our Local Communities

NOVA Group’s Labour Policy

When communities prosper, this subsequently has positive spillover effects on businesses as well, facilitating a more sustainable
and inclusive socioeconomic eco-system. With this in view, we have taken conscious steps to support the communities which

All our employees are paid no less than the minimum rates stipulated in Malaysian laws. No matter what positions they hold

we are part of.

in the Group, our foreign workers are also eligible for cash bonuses and annual increments. In line with our social compliance

This includes creating job opportunities to help elevate quality of life in these communities. As we grow our talent pool, we
prioritise local applicants from our surrounding communities, as evidenced by the fact that close to half of NOVA employees are

policy, NOVA also does not unlawfully withhold or deduct our employees’ salaries, nor do we impose monetary penalties for
misconducts.

from these communities.

Overtime is performed purely on a voluntary basis and we ensure this is rightfully communicated to our employees. Testament to

In tandem, we continued to build rapport with key stakeholders, including healthcare institutions and district police headquarters

to have sufficient rest for at least one day a week. This is in comparison to the limit of overtime allowed by Malaysian laws.

by providing financial support for their respective community-related activities.

our ethical working conditions, our employees typically perform 72 hours of overtime on a monthly basis, allowing our employees

To maintain a work life balance, we have revised our working hours to five (5) working days per week for all employees of the
Group instead of six (6) working days per week as before.
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Spurring Socio-Economic Growth
We recognise the role our operations serve as catalyst for social and economic development in our local communities.
Hence, our operations support a variety of initiatives which spur socio-economic growth of the communities. We are aware that
our procurement processes have an impact on the surrounding communities of where we operate. Our Group engages with local
business partners to procure goods and services. Our goal is to increase local procurement, where feasible, as it stimulates the
local economy and elevates the community’s socio-economic status.
We Care for Our Consumers and Marketplace
Enhancing consumer’s life through consistent delivery of high quality and safe products is part of our goal to create value for
our consumers. Quality reinforces our brands and reputation in the market, encourages consumer loyalty and sustainability of

Corporate Governance and Transparency
In keeping with our commitment to upholding ethical behaviour and conduct, we
introduced the Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy (“ABC Policy”) in 2020 which
applies to all Directors, employees and business partners who work for and with the
Group.

our business.

The key senior management team is tasked with managing compliance matters relating to bribery and corruption. All employees

We make sure that our products are safe and of high quality, and that our consumers who choose our products have a positive

ABC Policy was also distributed to all business partners to provide confirmation that they have read, understood and will take

experience. We comply strictly with our quality policy. The policy outlines the steps required to identify, control and monitor key
points of the potential risk to our operations. Our quality assurance team oversees our product safety performance across the

were required to complete an ABC Policy training to demonstrate awareness and understanding of the Group’s stance. The
measures to ensure compliance.

supply chain, starting from sourcing of ingredients, production, packaging and up to product delivery.
To ensure safe and high quality products:
we place emphasis on sourcing quality raw materials;
we regularly audit our own operations to ensure that we meet specific standards on safety and product quality;
we continuously review and improve our quality systems and procedures. These include performing tests and analysis on
raw materials, packaging, quality of our suppliers and products; and
our employees are trained on GMP and HALAL requirements.
Meeting the Highest Standards of Quality and Safety Control
Our Group is resolute in our objective of delivering products which meet our criteria to our consumers. In compliance with quality
standards, our products undergo rigorous tests by both in-house laboratory and third party accredited laboratories.
Testament to superior product quality, we have maintained our GMP certification and HALAL certification by JAKIM.
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We believe good corporate governance is fundamental to build a sustainable business environment conducive to long term
investments and sustainable economic growth. We are committed to maintain high standards of corporate governance by
embracing transparency, integrity, accountability and discipline in all our practices.
The Group has the following policies and procedures in place that govern our corporate environment and conduct:

Corporate Governance
Overview Statement
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Nova Wellness Group Berhad (“NOVA” or the “Company”) is pleased to present this
Corporate Governance Overview Statement (“CG Statement”) and report on the manner the Group has adopted and applied the
following principles and best practices set out in the:

Board
Diversity Policy

Anti-Bribery &
Anti-Corruption
Policy

2. Companies Act 2016;
3. Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 (“MCCG”); and

NOVA Group’s
NOVA
Group s
Policies
Policies
&
&
Procedures
Procedures

Board
Charter

1. Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”);

4. Corporate Governance (3rd Edition) issued by Bursa Securities;
Social
Compliance
Policy

The Board acknowledges the importance of practising good corporate governance practices under the leadership of the Board,
as guided by the MCCG. It is being applied as a fundamental part of discharging the Directors’ responsibilities to protect and to
enhance shareholders’ value.
This Statement should be read together with the Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”) which provide details on how each
practice set out in the MCCG has been applied. The CG Report can be downloaded from the Company’s website at www.nova.my.

Code of
Conduct &
Ethics

Environmental
Policy

This Statement should also be read along with other statements in this annual report (e.g. Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control, and Sustainability Statement) for a holistic understanding of the Company’s corporate governance framework
and practices.

Risk
Management
Framework

Health &
Safety Policy
Whistleblowing
Policy

This CG Statement demonstrates how the Company measures are aligned with the principles of good governance in accordance
with the MCCG and references are made to the three key corporate governance principles in the MCCG.

We are committed to undertake responsible and sustainable business practices through:
good business ethics and integrity;
observing the highest standards of corporate governance and transparency in our dealings; and
compliance with legislation and regulatory requirements.
Further details on our governance and internal controls are set out in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement and
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of this annual report.
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To ensure the effective discharge of its function and responsibilities, the Board also delegates some of the Board’s

PRINCIPLE A : BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

authorities and discretion to the properly constituted Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Risk Management Committee and Remuneration Committee, which are entrusted with specific responsibilities

Part I – Board Responsibilities

to oversee the Group’s affairs, with authorities to act on behalf of the Board in accordance with their respective Terms
1.

of Reference. The ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all matters deliberated in these Committees, however,

Board’s Leadership on Objectives and Goals

lies with the Board. Besides that, the Chairman of the relevant Board Committees also reports to the Board on key issues

1.1 Company’s strategic aims, values and standards

deliberated by the Board Committees at their respective meetings.
The Board may also delegate specific functions to ad hoc committees as and when required. The powers delegated to
these committees are set out in the Terms of Reference of each of the committees as approved by the Board.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors provide objective and independent judgment to the decision making of the
Board which provides an effective check and balance to the Board’s decision-making process.
Board Activities and Tasks in FYE2021
Overall, during FYE2021, the Board in meeting its goals and the Company’s objectives, has undertaken, either directly
or through the respective Board Committees and/or Key Senior Management, the following activities and tasks:
Business Plan
a) Reviewed the Group’s overall business plan and direction; and
b) Reviewed the Company’s vision and mission.
Financial and Operational
a) Reviewed and approved quarterly and year-end financial results;
b) Reviewed and approved the Audit Plan for FYE2021 by External Auditors;
c) Reviewed recurrent related party transactions; and
d) Reviewed and overseen cash flow, sales target and utilisation of the Listing Proceeds.

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic plans, and establishing visions and goals for delivery of long-term

Risk Management and Internal Control

values, and ensures effective leadership through oversight on management and continuously monitoring,
overseeing and evaluating the Group’s strategies, policies and performance so as to protect and to enhance
shareholders’ and other stakeholders’ value.
There is a division of functions between the Board and the Management. The Board is focused on the Group’s
overall governance by ensuring the implementation of strategic plans and objectives are in line with its vision
and mission; and that accountability to the Group and stakeholders is monitored effectively. The Board does not
actively manage but rather oversees the overall management of the Group which is delegated to the Group
Managing Director, Executive Directors and Key Senior Management of the Group. The Key Senior Management
supports the Group Managing Director and implements the running of the financial and operations of the Group.

a) Reviewed and approved the risk register;
		 b) Reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for FYE2021; and
		

c) Reviewed the internal audit report prepared by Internal Auditors.

		

Succession Planning, Evaluation and Remuneration

		

Reviewed the performance of the Group Managing Director, Executive Directors and Key Senior Management, and

		

approved performance bonus and annual salary increment.

		

Corporate Governance

		

Enhanced the overall corporate governance framework, including review and/or adoption of the Board Charter, Terms

		

of Reference, the Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Employees, the Whistleblowing Policy, the Anti-Bribery

		

and Anti-Corruption Policy, the Risk Management Framework and the Remuneration Policy for Directors and Key Senior

		 Management.
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Stakeholders Communication

The Company Secretary keeps the Board abreast with the latest regulatory updates and also ensure that deliberations
at Board and Board Committee meetings are well documented.

Ensured timely public announcements and disclosures were made to Bursa Securities.

The Board shall determine whether it is satisfied with the performance and support rendered by the Company Secretary

1.2 The Chairman of the Board

to the Board in discharge of its functions. The Board has evaluated the performance of the Company

		

The Board has elected a Chairman from amongst the members of the Board who is an Independent Non-Executive

Secretary and is of the view that the Company Secretary is competent and have kept abreast of the evolving

		

Director. Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi as the Company’s Independent Non-Executive Chairman

regulatory changes and developments through continuous education programmes and attendance of relevant

		

provides leadership and guidance to the Board and is responsible for ensuring effectiveness of the Board’s

conferences, seminars and training programmes.

		

performance. Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi works closely with the rest of the Board members in forming

		

policies and strategies to align the business activities driven by the Management (Group Managing Director,

		

Executive Directors and Key Senior Management).

1.5 Meeting Materials
The Board is provided with an agenda, reports and other relevant information at least seven (7) days prior to the
convening of the Board Meetings, covering various aspects of the Group’s operations, so that they have a comprehensive

1.3 Separation of Positions of the Chairman and Group Managing Director
		

understanding of the matters to be deliberated upon to enable them to arrive at an informed decision.

The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and Group Managing Director are clearly segregated to further enhance

All scheduled meetings held during the FYE2021 were preceded with a formal agenda issued by the

and preserve a balance of authority, power and accountability.

Company Secretary. Key Senior Management and advisers are invited to attend Board Meetings, where necessary,
to provide additional information and insights on the relevant agenda items tabled at Board Meetings.

The Board is led by the Independent Non-Executive Chairman while the Group Managing Director leads the Management
of the Group in making and implementing the day-to-day decisions on the business operations, managing resources

The Company Secretary attends and ensures that the deliberations and decisions at Board and Board Committee

and risks in pursuing the corporate objectives of the Group.

meetings are well documented in the minutes, including matters where Directors abstained from voting or
deliberation.

The separation of responsibilities between the Chairman and Group Managing Director are set out in the Board Charter
which can be viewed at the Company’s website at www.nova.my.

2.

1.4 Qualified and Competent Company Secretary

Demarcation of Responsibilities
2.1 Board Charter

In compliance with Practice 1.4 of the MCCG, the Board is supported by suitably qualified and competent Company

The Board is guided by the Board Charter which sets out the roles, functions, authority, responsibilities, membership,

Secretary. The Company Secretary plays an advisory role to the Board in relation to the Company’s

key matters reserved for the Board, relationships with Management and other matters.

Constitution, Board’s policies and procedures and compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements, codes

The Board reviews the Board Charter regularly and updates the Board Charter in accordance with the needs of the

or guidelines and legislations affecting the Company and Group.

Company and any new regulations that may have an impact on the discharge of the Board’s responsibilities to
ensure its effectiveness. The Board Charter can be viewed at the Company’s website at www.nova.my.

In performing the duties, the Company Secretary carries out, amongst others, the following tasks:
• Statutory duties as required under the Companies Act 2016, MMLR of Bursa Securities and Capital Market and
Services Act, 2007;
• Facilitating and attending Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings, respectively;
• Facilitating and attending the General Meeting(s);
• Ensuring that Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings, respectively are properly convened and the
proceedings are properly recorded;
• Ensuring timely communication of the Board decisions to the Management for further action;
• Maintaining records for the purpose of meeting statutory obligations of applicable jurisdictions;
• Facilitating the provision of information as may be requested by the Directors from time to time in an expeditious
manner and ensuring adherence to Board policies and procedures;
• Facilitating the conduct of the assessments to be undertaken by the Board and/or Board Committees as well as to
compile the results of the assessments for the Board and/or Board Committee’s notation;
• Assisting the Company on the lodgements of documents with relevant statutory and regulatory bodies;
• Assisting the Board with the preparation of announcements for release to Bursa Securities; and
• Rendering advice and support to the Board and Management.

3.

Good Business Conduct and Healthy Corporate Culture
3.1 Code of Conduct and Ethics
The Board has formalised a Code of Conduct and Ethics, which sets out the standard of conduct expected of Directors,
with the aim to cultivate good ethical conduct that permeates throughout the Group through transparency, integrity,
accountability and corporate social responsibility.
Directors are required to disclose any conflict of interest situations or any material personal interest that they may
have in the affairs of the Group as soon as they become aware of the interest and abstain themselves from any
deliberations on the matter.
3.2 Whistleblowing Policy
The Board is committed in maintaining the highest possible standard of professionalism, ethics and legal conduct in
the Group’s business activities. The Company’s Whistleblowing Policy provides a mechanism for its Board members,
all levels of employees, contractors, suppliers, bankers, customers, business associates or any other third party to
report suspected or instances of wrongdoing in the conduct of its business, whether in matters of financial reporting
or other malpractices, at the earliest opportunity and in an appropriate way. The Whistleblowing Policy is available on
the Company’s website at www.nova.my.
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Board’s Objectivity
4.1 Composition of the Board

		

The Board currently has seven (7) members, comprising three (3) Executive Directors and four (4) Non-Executive
Directors of whom three (3) are independent. The role of Chairman is held by an Independent Non-Executive Director.

Currently, the Company has one (1) female Director, denoting a 14.3% of female representation on the Board.
The Board has acknowledged the recommendation by the MCCG to work towards a Board comprising 30% female
Directors. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, will continue to actively search for other suitable and
well qualified female directors to join the Board.
4.6 New Candidates for Board Appointment

This Board composition complies with the MMLR of Bursa Securities to have at least one-third of the Board 		

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying and recommending suitable candidates for Board membership

consisting of Independent Directors.

and also for assessing the performance of the Directors on an ongoing basis. This process shall ensure

The MCCG requires that at least half of the Board comprises Independent Directors. The Board will endeavor to have
at least half the Board comprises of Independent Directors.
4.2 Tenure of Independent Directors
The Board is aware of the recommendations of the MCCG for tenure of Independent Directors not to exceed nine (9)
years. However, an Independent Director may continue to serve the Board subject to the Independent re-designation
as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. In the event the Board intends to retain the Director as independent

that the Board membership accurately reflects the long-term strategic direction and needs of the Company while it
determines the skills matrix needed to support the strategic direction and needs of the Company.
The process for the appointment of a new Director is summarised as follows: i.

The candidate identified upon the recommendation by the existing Directors, Key Senior Management and/or
other consultants;

ii.

In evaluating the suitability of candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee considers, inter-alia,
the competency, experience, commitment, contribution and integrity of the candidates, and in the case of 		
candidates proposed for appointment as Independent Non-Executive Directors, the candidate’s independence;

after a cumulative term of nine (9) years, justifications from the Board and shareholders’ approval at a general
meeting are required.
		

Currently, none of the Independent Directors of the Group has served for more than nine (9) years.

		

The Board is satisfied with the level of independence demonstrated by all the Independent Non-Executive Directors

		

and their ability to act in the best interests of the Company and Group.

4.3 Policy on Independent Director’s Tenure
The Company has a policy which limits the tenure of its Independent Directors to nine (9) years. The Board Charter
has adopted Practice 4.2 of the MCCG to seek shareholders’ approval in the event the Board desires to retain an
Independent Director, a person who has served in that capacity for more than nine (9) years.
4.4 Diverse Board and Key Senior Management
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing the mix of skills, expertise, composition, size,
experience, competence and effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and Key Senior Management.
This process ensures that the Board membership accurately reflects the long-term strategic direction and needs of
the Company while it determines the skills matrix needed to support the strategic direction and the needs of the
Company and Group.

iii.

Recommendation to be made by Nomination Committee to the Board if the proposed candidate is found to be
suitable. This includes recommendation for appointment as a member of the various Board Committees, where
necessary; and

iv. The final decision as to who shall be appointed as Director remains the responsibility of the full Board after 		
considering the recommendation of the Nomination Committee.
As an integral element of the process of appointing new Directors, the Nomination Committee will ensure that Directors
undergo an orientation programme to familiarise themselves with the Group’s business, which include visits
to the Group’s various offices and factory premises and meetings with Key Senior Management. This is to facilitate
their understanding of the Group’s activities and to assist them in effectively discharging their duties.
4.7 Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee has three (3) members comprising exclusively of Non-Executive Directors, all of whom
majority are Independent Directors. The Nomination Committee meets at least once in a year with additional meetings
to be convened, if necessary.
During the FYE2021, the Nomination Committee had met once and recorded full attendance by the members as
follows: -

Appointment of Board and Key Senior Management are based on objective criteria, merit and besides gender diversity,
due regard is placed for diversity in skills, competence, and experience. Please refer to the Profile of Board of Directors

Name

Designation

Directorship

Number of
Meeting(s)
Attended

Tan Mio Har (Appointed effective 26 August 2020) Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director

1/1

Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar

Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director

0/1

Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi

Member

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

-

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

Member

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

1/1

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Member

Independent Non-Executive Director

1/1

and Key Senior Management in the annual report for further information.
4.5 Board Diversity Policy
The Board acknowledges the importance of gender diversity in the Board and the recommendation of the MCCG
pertaining to the establishment of a diversity policy. Hence, the Board had always been in support of a policy of nondiscrimination on the bases of race, religion and gender. The Board encourages a dynamic and diverse composition
by nurturing suitable and potential candidates equipped with the competency, skills, experience, character, time
commitment, integrity and other qualities in meeting the future needs of the Company.

(Ceased to hold office effective 26 August 2020)
(Ceased to hold office effective 18 May 2021)

(Appointed effective 18 May 2021)
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for assessing the performance of the existing Directors and identifying,

The details of attendance of each Director on the Board, Board Committees and 4th Annual General Meeting who had

nominating, recruiting, appointing and orientating new Directors. The Board has established an annual

served NOVA during the year under review are as follows:

performance evaluation process to assess the performance and effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees,
as well as the performance of each Director and each Audit Committee member.
The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the Company’s website at www.nova.my.
5.

Overall Board Effectiveness
5.1 Annual Evaluation and Directors Training
The Board, together with the Nomination Committee, determines the size and composition of the Board subject to the
provisions of the Company’s Constitution. The composition and size of the Board is such that it will facilitate the		
decision making process of the Company. The Board comprises a minimum of one third of Independent Non-Executive
Directors and comprises Directors with a broad and relevant range of skills, diversity, expertise and experience.
The Nomination Committee conducted its annual assessment and evaluation on the performance and effectiveness
of the Board, its Committees and the contribution of each Director. The evaluation involved individual Directors completing
separate performance evaluation sheet regarding the processes of the Board and its Committees, their effectiveness
and where improvements could be considered. Criteria such as contribution to interaction, quality of output, understanding
of roles and Board Chairman’s role are assessed and evaluated.

In the intervals between Board Meetings, for any matters requiring Board’s decision, the Board’s approvals are obtained

These assessments and comments by all Directors were summarised and discussed at the Nomination Committee

through Directors’ Resolution In Writing (“DRIW”). The resolutions passed by way of DRIW would also be tabled for

meeting which were then reported to the Board at the Board meeting held thereafter. All assessments and evaluations

notation at the subsequent Board Meeting.

carried out by the Nomination Committee in the discharge of its duties are properly documented.

The Board acknowledges that continuous education is vital in keeping the Directors abreast with developments in the

An assessment and evaluation of the performance and effectiveness of all Board Committees was undertaken by the

market place and with new statutory and regulatory requirements, besides enhancing professionalism and knowledge

Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee is satisfied that these Board Committee and its members have

in enabling them to discharge their roles in an effective manner.

discharged their functions, duties and responsibilities in accordance with the Terms of Reference. There were no major
concerns from the results of the annual assessment and evaluation. The Nomination Committee, upon the review carried
out, is satisfied that the size of the Board is optimum and that there is an appropriate mix of experience and expertise in
the composition of the Board and its Committees.

Relevant training programmes were arranged to facilitate knowledge building for Directors. The Directors may also
attend additional training courses according to their individual needs, to equip themselves for the discharge of
responsibilities as Directors of a public listed company and in the Board Committees on which they serve.

Based on the annual assessment and evaluation of the performance and effectiveness of the Board, the Nomination
Committee has recommended the re-election of Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi and Phang Nyie Lin as Directors
at the forthcoming Fifth Annual General Meeting. The Board (save for the interested Directors) is satisfied that these
two (2) Directors have continued to contribute to the Board effectiveness and have discharged their responsibilities as
Directors.
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All the Directors have attended training and development programmes during the FYE2021. The conferences,

For the Executive Directors and Key Senior Management, the components of the remuneration package are linked to

seminars, workshops and training programmes attended by the Directors are as follows: -

corporate and individual performance; for the Non-Executive Directors, they receive a fixed Director’s fee, meeting
allowance for attending meetings of the Board and its Committees.

Director

Programmes Attended

Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi

• How to be an Effective NED - ICDM
• Awareness on ISO 37001:Anti-Bribery Management System (ABMS)
Webinar
• Industry Briefing on ESG Shariah-Compliant Screening for Securities
• Shariah Investing Dialogue with Public Listed Companies 2021

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

• Awareness on ISO 37001:Anti-Bribery Management System (ABMS)
Webinar
• Fraud Risk Management Workshop

Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar

-

Tan Mio Har

• Awareness on ISO 37001:Anti-Bribery Management System (ABMS)
Webinar

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

• How to be an Effective NED - ICDM
• Awareness on ISO 37001:Anti-Bribery Management System (ABMS)
Webinar
• Industry Briefing on ESG Shariah-Compliant Screening for Securities

6.2 Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee has three (3) members comprising majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for setting the policy framework and makes recommendation to the
Board on all elements of remuneration and terms of employment of Executive Directors and Key Senior Management.
Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration will be a matter to be decided by the Board as a whole with the Director
concerned abstaining from deliberations and voting decisions in respect of his individual remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee is entrusted to assist the Board, amongst others, to recommend to the Board the
remuneration of Executive Directors by linking rewards to the corporate and individual performance. The Remuneration
Committee shall ensure that the level of remuneration is sufficient to attract and to retain Directors of the quality
required to manage the business of the Group.
The current remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors comprises fixed Directors’ fees and meeting allowances,
based on the number of meetings they are attending for a year which requires shareholders’ approval.
Meetings of the Remuneration Committee are held as and when necessary, and at least once a year.
During the FYE2021, the Remuneration Committee had met twice and the attendance is as follows: Directorship

Number of
Meeting(s)
Attended

Tan Mio Har (Appointed effective 26 August 2020) Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director

2/2

Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar

Member

Independent Non-Executive Director

0/2

Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi

Member

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

2/2

The Directors will continue to undergo other relevant training programmes and seminars to keep themselves abreast

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

Member

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

2/2

with the relevant changes in laws, regulations and business development, and matters of relevance to their respective

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Member

Independent Non-Executive Director

-

Phang Nyie Lin

• Implementation of Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy (section 17A
of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009)

Phang Yeen Nung

• Implementation of Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy (section 17A of
the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009)

Phang Yeen Aun

• Implementation of Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy (section 17A
of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009)

Name

(Ceased to hold office effective 6 January 2021)
(Ceased to hold office effective 18 May 2021)

personal development, and to enhance their skills and knowledge, which may be constructive or useful in discharging
their role as Director of the Group.
6.

Level and Composition of Remuneration

(Appointed effective 18 May 2021)

Designation

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the Company’s website at www.nova.my.

6.1 Remuneration Policy
The Board has adopted its Remuneration Policy which sets out the remuneration package of Directors and Key Senior
Management offered by the Group and the Company that is in line with current market practices to attract, retain,
motivate and reward suitably qualified candidates to occupy positions in the Board and Key Senior Management,
thereby attaining the corporate objectives and sustainable growth and development of the Company and Group.
The Remuneration Policy is available on the Company’s website at www.nova.my.
The Company endeavours to obtain up-to-date remuneration data and information on pay patterns and market
practices. The remuneration packages of companies comparable to the Company will be used as a benchmark
to ensure the remuneration packages of the Company offered to Directors and Key Senior Management remain
appropriate and competitive.
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Remuneration for Directors and Key Senior Management

The Board has established a formal and transparent arrangement with the External Auditors of the Company through the Audit
Committee. During the FYE2021, the Audit Committee communicated directly and independently with the External Auditors

7.1 Director’s Remuneration

and without the presence of the Management. For further details, please refer to the Audit Committee Report presented in
this annual report.

The details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company during the FYE2021 are categorised as follows: -

Name

Designation

Directors’
Fee
(RM)

Salary
(RM)

Bonus
(RM)

Other Benefits

EPF Emoluments In-Kind
(RM)
(RM)
(RM)

9.
Total
(RM)

Group Managing Director/

of an appropriate control environment and framework as well as reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness. The internal

-

471,000

52,500

62,820

-

-

586,320

Chief Research Officer
Executive Director

-

189,000

28,000

26,040

-

-

243,040

Phang Yeen Aun

Executive Director

-

189,000

28,000

26,040

-

-

243,040

Non-Executive Directors
Independent Non-

Mohamad Radzi

Executive Chairman

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai

Independent Non-

Seng

Executive Director

Dr Munavvar Zubaid

Independent Non-

Bin Abdul Sattar

Executive Director

36,000

-

Independent Non-

-

-

750

1,000

37,750

1,000

37,750

Management Committee ensures prudent risk management over the Group’s business and operations.

36,000

-

-

-

18,000

-

-

-

-

-

18,000

36,000

-

-

-

750

1,000

37,750

36,000

-

-

-

750

1,000

37,750

162,000

849,000

108,500

114,900

3,000

Executive Director
Total (RM)

8.

4,000 1,241,400

Effective and Independent Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company presently comprises three (3) Non-Executive Directors, majority being Independent
Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by an Independent Director, Mr Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng, who is distinct from
the Chairman of the Board.
Name

To fulfill its oversight responsibility, the Board, as a whole or through delegation to the Risk Management Committee,
reviews the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s risk management system which encapsulates the key processes

Non-Executive Director
Tan Mio Har

evaluating and managing significant risks which are faced by the Group.

of risk identification, assessment, mitigation, monitoring and reporting. The Risk Management Committee oversees the

750

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad Non-Independent

control system has been applied to manage risks within cost levels appropriate to the significance of the risks.
Accompanying these regular reviews and evaluations of internal control system is a continuous process for identifying,

Phang Yeen Nung

Dr Abdul Manaf Bin

9.1 Effective Risk Management and Internal Control Framework
The Board affirms its overall responsibilities for the Group’s system of internal control which includes the establishment

Executive Directors
Phang Nyie Lin

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

Group’s risk management framework, policies and performs regular risk management assessments. The Risk

The Risk Management Committee presently comprises three (3) Non-Executive Directors, majority being Independent
Directors and is chaired by Mr Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng.
Meetings of the Risk Management Committee are held as and when necessary, and at least twice a year.
During the FYE2021, the Risk Management Committee had met twice and the attendance is as follows: Name

Designation

Directorship

Number of
Meeting(s)
Attended

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director

2/2

Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar

Member

Independent Non-Executive Director

0/2

Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi

Member

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

2/2

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

Member

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

-

Tan Mio Har

Member

Independent Non-Executive Director

1/2

(Ceased to hold office effective 26 August 2020)
(Ceased to hold office effective 18 May 2021)

Designation

Directorship

(Appointed effective 18 May 2021)
(Appointed effective 20 August 2020)

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi

Member

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

In addition to the Risk Management Committee, a Risk Management Working Committee (“RMWC”) was formed to

Tan Mio Har

Member

Independent Non-Executive Director

force behind the routine risk management activities. Its main functions encompass provision of regular feedback on

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

Member

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

status of risk factors to facilitate informed management decision making, execution of appropriate risk mitigation

(Ceased to hold office effective 18 May 2021)

(Appointed effective 18 May 2021)

facilitate the group-wide risk management initiative from an operational perspective. The RMWC serves as the driving

measures and progress monitoring thereof, as well as identification of new and emerging risk factors. RMWC is headed
by the Group Managing Director and comprises head of departments, who are risk owners themselves, as members.

The members of the Audit Committee have a mix of commercial, financial skills, management and accounting experiences.
Arrangements will be made by the Company for the members of the Committee to attend seminars to continue to keep
abreast of relevant developments in accounting and auditing standards, practices and rules.
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9.2 Features, Adequacy and Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control Framework
The Board has adopted a systematic approach to overseeing the actual performance and provides guidance to the
Management on measures to improve the business performance and minimise risk impacts. The Group has an adequate
and effective risk management framework, and a sound internal control system in place. The Group’s risk management
function is being assigned to the Risk Management Committee which is assisted by the RMWC to monitor and
mitigate the key risks.

Part II – Conduct of General Meetings
12. Encourage Shareholders’ Participation at General Meetings
The Board regards the AGM and other general meetings as an opportunity to communicate directly with shareholders
and encourages attendance and participation in the dialogue. To ensure effective participation and engagement
with shareholders at the 4th AGM of the Company held on 16 November 2020, all members of the Board were present at the
meeting to respond to the questions raised by the shareholders or proxies, with the exception of Dr Munavvar Zubaid Bin

The Audit Committee will perform a risk oversight role by reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s

Abdul Sattar whom was absent with apology due to medical condition. The Chairman of the Board chaired the 4th AGM in

system of internal control and risk management function and advises the Board accordingly.

an orderly manner and allowed the shareholders or proxies to speak at the meeting.

The Board is committed to improving the risk management to meet its corporate objectives and to support all types of
businesses and operations within the acceptable level of risks which are aligned with the Group’s risk appetite. The
Board is of the view that the existing system of risk management and internal control is sound and sufficient to protect
the Group’s interest and that of its stakeholders.
The features of risk management and internal control framework are adequately disclosed in the Audit Committee
Report, Corporate Governance Overview Statement, and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of this
annual report.
10. Effective Governance, Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board welcomed questions and feedback from shareholders during and at the end of the 4th AGM and ensured their
queries were responded in a proper and systematic manner. The Key Senior Management and External Auditors were also in
attendance to respond to the shareholders’ queries. Further, in line with good corporate governance practice, the notice of
the 4th AGM was issued at least 28 days before the AGM date.
Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Listing Requirements, the Company is required to ensure that any resolution set out
in the notice of general meetings is voted by poll. Hence, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the Company’s 4th AGM
were voted by poll.
Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy

An annual assessment of the effectiveness and independence of the internal audit function has been conducted by the

In line with the Corporate Liability Provision under the New Section 17A MACC Act 2009 (Amendment 2018), the Board has

Audit Committee for the FYE2021. The Audit Committee has opined that the internal audit team had carried out their

adopted the Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy.

duties objectively, impartially and independently. The Board is of the view that the system of risk management and
internal control in place during the FYE2021 is sound and sufficient to safeguard the Group’s assets, interests and its
business operations.
PRINCIPLE C : INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Part I – Communication with Stakeholders
11. Continuous Communication Between Company and Stakeholders
The Board recognises the importance of an effective communication channel between the Board, shareholders and the
general public, and at the same time, full compliance with the disclosure requirements as set out in the MMLR.
The annual reports, quarterly results and any announcements on material corporate exercises are the primary modes
of disseminating information on the Group’s business activities and financial performance.
The Group Chief Business Officer, Chief Compliance Officer and Chief Financial Officer are the designated spokesperson
for all matters related to the Group and oversees investor relations and where appropriate and practicable, will engage
with research analysts, fund managers and institutional shareholders based on mutual understanding of objectives
and entertain visits from such groups.

This shows the Group’s commitment in doing businesses ethically and lawfully. Any forms of bribery and corruption are
unacceptable and will not be tolerated. It has always been the Group’s corporate philosophy and our principle of placing integrity
before profits.
The Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy is published on the Company’s website at www.nova.my.
This policy sets out the Group’s position to prevent acts of bribery and corruption. The policy and procedures were being
designed to comply with legislation governing bribery and corruption. It also provides guidance on the standards of behavior for
the employees in which they must follow, and this mainly reflects good business practices no matter where they work or who
they are dealing with.
Besides, this policy applies to all employees working at any levels and grades such as Directors, Key Senior Management,
managers, executives, officers, supervisors, staffs, workers, contractual personnel and interns. This policy is also applicable
to business associates, i.e. any individual or organisations which the Company works with, and they are to comply with the
minimum standards and procedures related to anti-bribery and anti-corruption.
The Group had conducted Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Workshops virtually during the FYE2021 to create awareness and
understanding of the policy among the employees. A general briefing will be given to new employees during their orientation
program by the Human Resource Department.

The Board will continue to assess and improve the reporting and disclosure. The Company further ensures that
shareholders are kept fully informed through information provided on the Company’s website at www.nova.my.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CODE
The Group is committed to achieve a high standard of corporate governance throughout the Group and to the highest level
of integrity and ethical standards in all its business dealings.
The Board is of the opinion that for the FYE2021, the Group has generally adhered to the principles and recommendations

2021

Audit Committee
Report

as set out in the MCCG save as disclosed otherwise.
The Board shall remain committed in attaining the highest possible standards through the continuous adoption of the
principles and best practices of the MCCG and all other applicable laws and regulations.
This Corporate Governance Overview Statement was approved by the Board on 28 September 2021.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE PLAYS AN IMPORTANT ROLE IN PROVIDING ASSISTANCE TO THE BOARD IN FULFILLING ITS
OVERSIGHT DUTIES THROUGH REVIEW OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND PROVIDES AN UNBIASED EVALUATION OF
THE GROUP’S INTERNAL CONTROL PERFORMANCE FROM AN INDEPENDENT PERSPECTIVE.
The Board of Directors has pleasure in submitting the report of the Audit Committee of the Board for the year ended 30 June 2021.
As at 30 June 2021, the members of the Committee were:

The Audit Committee held five (5) meetings during the
financial year ended 30 June 2021 and details of the
attendance of members of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

The Audit Committee meetings were also attended by the
Note: The profiles for the members of Audit Committee can

Group Managing Director, Executive Directors, Group Chief

be viewed on page 32 and 33 of this annual report.

Financial Officer and Group Chief Compliance Officer at the

*Changes to the members of the Audit Committee was

appropriate. The Audit Committee also met with the External

in accordance to comply with Practice 1.4 of the revised
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2021 (Revised on
28 April 2021).
The Audit Committee membership is in line with Paragraph
15.09 & 15.10 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities and Malaysian
Code of Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) Practice 8.1 & 8.2,
in which;

invitation of the Audit Committee members and as and when
Auditors during the year, without the presence of
Management. The meetings have been appropriately
structured with Audit Committee members receiving notices,
agendas and papers sufficiently in advance of the meetings.
The Audit Committee Chairman reports to the Board on
principal matters deliberated at Audit Committee meetings.
Minutes of each Audit Committee meeting are recorded

All members are Non-Executive Directors and majority of

and tabled for confirmation at the following meeting and

the members are Independent Directors;

subsequently presented to the Board for notation. The Audit

No alternate director is appointed as a member;

Committee Chairman also conveys to the Board matters

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is a member of the

of significant concern as and when raised by the External

Malaysian Institute of Accountants;

Auditors or Internal Auditors.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is not the Chairman

All members of the Audit Committee have and will continue

of the Board; and

to undertake professional development to keep themselves

None of the Committee members is a former key audit

abreast of relevant developments in accounting and

partner of the Company’s External Auditors.

auditing standards, practices and rules. Details of the Audit
Committee members’ trainings can be viewed in page 62 of
this annual report.
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The Committee discharged its duties and responsibilities in
accordance with its Terms of Reference. The full Terms of
Reference for the Audit Committee is available at www.nova.my.
ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN DURING THE FYE2021
FINANCIAL REPORTING
Reviewed the quarterly unaudited financial results and
audited annual financial statements of the Company/
Group to ensure compliance with the MMLR, applicable
approved accounting standards and other statutory
and regulatory requirements prior to recommending for
approval by the Board of Directors;
Reviewed the impact of any changes to the accounting
policies and adoption of new accounting standards
as well as accounting treatments used in the financial
statements;

Officer that:
appropriate accounting policies had been adopted
and applied consistently;
-

-

-

thereto; and any matter the External Auditors may wish to

management response(s);

the External Auditors and the total fees paid;
(The External Auditor’s non-audit service fees and the
statutory audit fees are available on page 80 of this annual
report)
Assessed the suitability and independence of External
Auditors that it maintained its independence in

misstatements and gave a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the respective
subsidiary within the Group for 2021.
EXTERNAL AUDIT
Reviewed and discussed with the External Auditors

objectively to provide reasonable assurance to the Audit

Key audit matters addressed in the auditors’ report

Committee regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of

for the FYE2021.

the Group’s internal control systems, and assist the Board
internal audit work is carried out according to the standards

INTERNAL AUDIT
Reviewed with the Internal Auditors their annual audit
plan which is risk-based and focused on significant risk
areas to ensure adequate scope and comprehensive

accounting standards and its subsequent implementation,
and to answer the concerns raised by the Audit Committee
during their meetings;
Conducted private meeting with the External Auditors
without the presence of executive board members and
Management;
Reviewed

the

Audit Committee on biannual basis. It adopts a risk-based

framework of the Group;

their audit report. The audit reports covered all business
sectors of the Group incorporating audit findings and
recommendations on system and control weaknesses
noted during the course of the audit;
Reviewed

the

corrective

Committee

Report,

Corporate

Governance Overview Statement and Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control and recommended
to the Board for approval prior to their inclusion in the
Company’s annual report;

professional care. Findings are reported regularly to the
methodology in planning and conducting audits by focusing

actions

on key risks areas and activities that are aligned with the
Group’s strategic plans. The Audit Committee approves
the internal audit plan each year. The scope of the internal
audit covers the audits of significant units and operations,
including but not limited to procurement, human resource
management, management information system, financial
reporting and treasury, revenue, credit risk management,
production and quality assurance, inventory management,

taken

by

the

Management in addressing and resolving issues as
well as ensuring that all key issues were adequately
addressed on a timely basis;

research and development, and fixed assets management of
the Group.
During the financial year, the Management worked
closely with the Internal Auditors in identifying risk areas,

Reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit processes

implementing control measures and monitoring controls.

and the resources allocated to Internal Auditors.

During the financial year, reviews were conducted on

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Reviewed and recommended related party transactions

Audit

The Internal Auditors is independent of the activities they

Reviewed the risk management and internal control

who acts as Internal Auditors to review and appraise

meetings to update the Audit Committee on the changes in

Auditors for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

audit and perform their audit with impartiality and due

and Practice of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants;

Invited the External Auditors to attend Audit Committee

set by professional bodies, primarily the Institute of Internal

coverage over the activities of the Group;

It met with Talent League Sdn Bhd (“Talent League”)

the audit fee;

financial statements did not contain material

standing to undertake their activities independently and

Securities; and

provision of By-Laws on Professional Ethics, Conduct

prudent judgements and reasonable estimates had

the annual financial statements and the quarterly

The disclosure requirements of the MMLR of Bursa

Reviewed the overall scope of the Group’s internal audit.

appropriate;

disclosures under the MFRS, IFRS and MMLR; and

Talent League has adequate resources and appropriate

accordance with its internal requirements and with the

Auditors for the financial year ending 30 June 2022 and

for effective and efficient financial reporting and

internal audit requirements.

consolidated financial statements for the FYE2021;

Reviewed the provision of non-audit services provided by

appointment of Mazars PLT (“MAZARS”) as External

adequate processes and controls were in place

-

The Group outsourced its internal audit function to fulfil its

in monitoring and managing risks and internal controls. The

statements and quarterly financial statements was

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);

-

discuss;
Reviewed the External Auditors’ management letter(s) and

The new financial reporting standards issued by the
Act 2016 in Malaysia and their applicability to the

and findings noted in the course of the audit of the Group’s
financial statements and management’s responses

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

MFRS, IFRS, and the requirements of Companies

statements with the External Auditors including issues

Reviewed and recommended to the Board the re-

Reporting Standards (MFRS) and International

-

Discussed and reviewed the Group’s financial year end

the going concern basis applied in the annual financial

been made in accordance with Malaysian Financial

-

Discussed other main issues such as:

Auditors by obtaining affirmation from the External

Obtained assurance from the Group Chief Financial
-

and effectiveness of the External Auditors;

(“RPT”) presented by the Management to the Board for
approval, to ensure the RPT were undertaken in the best
interest of the Group, fair, reasonable and on normal
commercial terms as well as not detrimental to the
interest of the minority shareholders.

management information system and procurement functions
of the Group including follow-up of matters from previous
internal audit reports. Taking into consideration the issues
highlighted to the Audit Committee during the financial year
ended 30 June 2021, the overall control environment of the
Group was found to be generally effective. The total costs
incurred for the internal audit function of the Group for the
financial year ended 30 June 2021 was RM23,000.

the nature and scope of the audit and plan prior to the
commencement of audit and ensured the audit was
comprehensive;
Reviewed the audit fees, the number and experience of
audit staff assigned to the audit engagement, resources
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ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT
Annually, the Board through the Nomination Committee,
conducts an annual performance assessment of the
Board and its Committees. The annual performance

2021

Statement On Risk Management
And Internal Control

assessment for the Audit Committee, inter alia, reviews the
Terms of Reference, measures whether the composition
is adequate and assesses overall effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee and the Board are satisfied with the
independence in decision making by the Audit Committee
members and that the Audit Committee and its members
have effectively discharged its duties in accordance with
its Terms of Reference. The Board is also satisfied that the

INTRODUCTION
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Nova Wellness Group Berhad (“NOVA” or the “Company”) is committed to embed
an effective risk management and internal control system into Nova Wellness Group Berhad and its subsidiary (the
“Group”). The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control is made in accordance with Paragraph 15.26 (b) of
the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and guided by
the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control - Guidelines for Directors of Public Listed Issuers.

Audit Committee has provided valuable recommendations
to assist the Board in making informed decision leading to
effective and efficient Board meetings. The Board was well
informed on the Audit Committee’s deliberations on a timely
basis where the report by the Audit Committee Chairman is
a standing agenda item in the scheduled meetings of the
Board.
REPORT TO THE EXCHANGE
The Audit Committee did not see any matter in breach of the
MMLR that warrants reporting to Bursa Securities.

BOARD STATEMENT
Risk management is one of the core responsibilities of the Board and is central to the decision-making process. The Board is
committed to establishing and maintaining a sound, effective and efficient system of risk management and internal control to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s asset. As such, continuous reviews of processes are undertaken by the
Board to ensure adequacy and integrity of the system mentioned.
This Statement outlines the nature and scope of the risk management and internal control of the Group and outlines the main
features of the Group’s risk management and internal control system for the FYE2021.
BOARD RESPONSIBILITY
The Board affirms the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of risk management and internal control so as to

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng
Chairman
Audit Committee

safeguard shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets. The system of risk management and internal control is designed to
manage, but may not totally eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. Accordingly, such systems can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material error, misstatement or losses.
The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process of identifying, evaluating and managing all significant risks faced by the
Group that has been in place for the year and up to the date of approval of this Statement for inclusion in the annual report. The
process is regularly reviewed by the Board and is in accordance with the (Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control:
Guidance for Directors of Listed Issuers) and the Group’s risk management procedures.
RISK MANAGEMENT GOVERNANCE
The Board regards risk management as an integral part of all business operations. Hence, the Board explicitly assumes the
responsibility of identifying the major risks and ensures the implementation of a dynamic system to manage risk exposure
within the acceptable level of tolerance.
To fulfil its oversight responsibility, the Board, as a whole or through delegation to the Risk Management Committee, reviews
the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s risk management system which includes the key processes of risk identification,
assessment, mitigation, monitoring and reporting.
Pursuant to the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 (“MCCG”) requirement, the Risk Management Committee is
made up of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors. The members of Risk Management Committee, comprising two
(2) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director, are as follows:
1. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng (Chairman)
2. Tan Mio Har
3. Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad (Appointed effective 18 May 2021)
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Refer to page 65 for the meeting attendance record of Risk Management Committee members.

2021

The External Auditors (“Mazars PLT”) provides further assurance to the Audit Committee in the form of annual statutory audit

The Risk Management Committee had discharged its functions and carried out its duties as set out in the Terms of Reference

of the financial statements. Areas of concern identified during the course of external audit examination will be brought to the

of the Risk Management Committee.

attention of the Audit Committee through management letters and discussion at the Audit Committee meeting.

The Terms of Reference of the Risk Management Committee is available for reference on the Company’s website at www.nova.my.
In addition, a Risk Management Working Committee (“RMWC”) was formed to facilitate the group-wide risk management
initiative at the Management level. RMWC serves as the driving force behind the routine risk management activities. Its main
functions encompass provision of regular feedback on status of risk factors to facilitate informed management decision making,
execution of appropriate risk mitigation measures and progress monitoring thereof, as well as identification of new and emerging

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Group’s Internal Auditors assist the Audit Committee in providing independent assessment on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The outsourced Internal Auditors conduct their works by referring to a
recognised framework, such as the International Professional Practices Framework issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

risk factor. RMWC is headed by the Group Managing Director and comprises heads of business units or support functions, who

During the FYE2021, internal audits were carried out in accordance to the internal audit plan that has been reviewed and

are risk owners themselves, as members.

approved by the Audit Committee. The business processes reviewed were procurement and management information system.

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The internal audit reports that were tabled to the Audit Committee for their deliberation on biannual basis include management
response and corrective actions taken or to be taken in regard to the specific findings and recommendations. The management

At the Group level, risks arising from the business operations are continuously identified. These identified risks are incorporated

as a whole is responsible for ensuring that the necessary corrective actions on reported weaknesses are promptly taken. The

into the risk register and are assessed to determine if the risk rating is High, Moderate or Low. The rating process is guided by

Audit Committee presents its findings to the Board.

a matrix of possibility of occurrence and the associated impacts, of which both financial and non-financial consequences are
duly considered. Thereafter, owners of these risks will drive the implementation of risk mitigation measures towards achieving

Further details of the internal audit functions and activities are set out in the Audit Committee Report of this annual report.

a residual risk that is within the acceptable tolerance.

OTHER KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Progress updates on the mitigation measures will be furnished on a quarterly basis for deliberation at the RMWC meeting.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems comprises the following key processes:

Adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigation measures will be assessed and further enhanced where necessary. In addition, any
identified emerging critical risk factors will be incorporated into the risk register and managed in accordance to the Group’s risk

Clearly Defined Operating Structure, Lines of Responsibilities and Delegated Authority

management methodology. Outcome of the RMWC meetings will subsequently be brought to the Risk Management Committee

Various Board and Management Committees have been established to assist the Board in discharging its duties. The Committees are:

for further deliberation on a biannual basis and where necessary. Direction of mitigation measures will be fine-tuned to ensure
action plans are on track in addressing the significant risk factors.
The Risk Management Committee will subsequently report the major risks to the Board of Directors to ensure the risk exposures
are acceptable and appropriate level of risk mitigation are being implemented. This approach creates a robust risk management
system that is self-sustaining and will continue to evolve in response to changing business environment.
INTERNAL CONTROL GOVERNANCE
The Management team, led by the Group Managing Director, comprises experienced personnel who are subject matter experts
in their own specialized fields. These individual members in the Management team are held accountable for the conduct and
performance within their assigned business units and support functions. Internal control principles are strongly advocated
and embedded into the various day-to-day operational policies and procedures of the business units and support functions
concerned. These assigned business units and support functions will conduct its management meetings at regular interval to
monitor its performance, action plan progress and gather further feedback for improvement purposes.
To fulfil its oversight responsibility, the Audit Committee is committed to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system. In this respect, the Group has outsourced its internal audit function to an independent professional
service firm, Talent League (the “Internal Auditors”) which carries out its functions independently with risk-based approach and
provides the Audit Committee and the Board with the assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal
controls. The cost of internal audit function for the FYE2021 was RM23,000.
For any significant control lapses and/or deficiencies noted from the reviews will be documented and communicated to
management for review and corrective actions. The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee on all significant noncompliance, internal control weaknesses and actions taken by the Management to resolve the audit issues identified.
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Written Policies and Procedures
Systematically documented Policies and Procedures, and Standard Operating Procedures are in place to guide employees in
their day-to-day work. These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly and updated when necessary.
Performance Management System
A performance management system with clearly defined business objectives and targets are set for relevant employees.
Employees’ performances are monitored, appraised and rewarded according to the achievement of targets set.
Planning, Monitoring and Reporting

The significant risks relating to the Group’s business, among others, include:

RISK PROFILES

Non-compliance
to regulatory
requirements

CAUSES
Changes in the rules and
regulations.
Oversight/negligence by staff.
Ineffective training on knowledge/
understanding of the operational
procedures.

The Audit Committee reviews the Group’s quarterly financial performance, together with Management, which is subsequently
reported to the Board.
Related Party Transactions
Related party transactions (if any) are disclosed, reviewed, and monitored by the Audit Committee and Board on a quarterly
basis.

Training and development programmes are identified and scheduled for employees to acquire the necessary knowledge and

[Preventive]
Establish SOPs.
Conduct/attend training.
Continuous engagement with
regulatory authorities.

Inadequate monitoring in
deciphering the statutory and
regulatory requirements.

[Detective]

Non-compliance to policies and
procedures.

Continuously update on regulatory
changes through training, seminars
and conferences.

Unfamiliar/insufficient knowledge
of statutory laws and regulatory
requirements.

Training and Development Programmes

MITIGATION

Internal audit.

Quality control.
[Corrective]

competency to meet their performance and job expectations.

Rectify breaches.

Internal Audit Function

Appeal and explain to authorities.

The Group’s internal audit function is outsourced to a professional service firm, Talent League to assist the Audit Committee in
providing independent assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.

Credit risk

The Group Managing Director, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Compliance Officer have provided the Board with

Late payment/customers fail to
make payment.

assurance that the Group risk management and internal control system is operating adequately and effectively. All internal
control weaknesses identified during the period under review have been or are being addressed. There were no major internal
control weaknesses that require disclosure in the annual report. The Management will continue to review and take measures to

SIGNIFICANT OR MAIN PRINCIPAL RISK RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS
The Group has identified the significant risks that have high potential of impact and likelihood to the overall Group’s operation
and at the same time maintains the risk management system and internal control to ensure that the corporate objectives and
strategies are achieved within the acceptable risk appetite of the Group.

treatment, and monitoring. Considerations were made on the macro environment to identify and assess the Group’s exposures
to risk and uncertainty. Existing mitigation controls are identified to evaluate the current risks level and consider improvements/
management actions to further manage the risks.

Implementation of policies and
procedures in opening of new
accounts of customers, application of
credit term/credit limit, invoicing, and
collections as well as credit controls.
Clearly defined levels of authority
to ensure the approval roles of
authorised personnel commensurate
with the level of experience in credit
risk management, and that there is
clear segregation of duties between
parties originating and approving
credits.

strengthen the risk management and control environment.

These risks are tabled by the RMWC via a series of risk management process including risks identification, analysis, evaluation,

[Preventive]

Safety, health and environmental
risks

Employee negligence.

[Preventive]

Non-compliance to policies and
procedures.

Established SOPs.

Epidemic/Pandemic.

Strict compliance monitoring.
Regular health checkup and screening.
[Corrective]
Disciplinary action.
Insurance policies.
Health screening.
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REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
The Board is dedicated to operate a sound system of risk management and internal controls, and recognises that the system
must continuously evolve to support the progressive business growth of the Group.
The process for identifying, evaluating and managing risks as outlined in this Statement has been in place for the year under

2021

Additional Compliance
Information

review and up to the date of approval of this Statement. During the FYE2021, a number of improvements to internal control gaps
has been implemented especially those related to the significant risks of the Group. There has been no adverse material impact

In compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”),

to the financial performance of the Group as a result of the internal control gaps detected.

the following information is provided:

The Board, with the assurance received from the Group Managing Director, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Compliance

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

Officer, concludes that the Group’s risk management and internal control system is operating adequately and effectively, in all
material aspects.

Nova Wellness Group Berhad was listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities (“Listing”) on 20 July 2018. In conjunction with

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

(“IPO Proceeds”).

As required by paragraph 15.23 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the annual report of the Group for the FYE2021. Their review was performed
in accordance with the Audit and Assurance Practice Guide 3 (“AAPG 3”) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. The
External Auditors’ procedures have been conducted to assess whether the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
is supported by the documentation prepared by or for the Directors and that it is an appropriate reflection of the process adopted
by the Directors in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal control for the Group.
AAPG3 does not require the External Auditors to form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. Based on the procedures performed, nothing had come to their attention that caused them

the Listing, the Company undertook a public issue of 81,660,000 new ordinary shares, raising gross proceeds of RM44.91 million

On 17 July 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) has announced that it has deliberated and resolved
to approve where part of the proceeds raised from public issue allocated for research and development activities amounting
to approximately RM7.57 million will be revised to purchase machineries for the production of functional food and skincare
products (“Revision”). The Board has also approved the extension of time for the utilisation of the remaining IPO Proceeds.
Subsequently, the Company has successfully completed the transfer of the listing and quotation for the entire issued share
capital of the Company to the Main Market of Bursa Securities (“Transfer Listing”) on 11 February 2021.
As at 30 June 2021, the status of the utilisation of the IPO Proceeds is set out as below:

to believe that the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control set out above was not prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with the disclosure required by paragraph 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control:
Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, nor was factually inaccurate.
CONCLUSION
The Board has taken the necessary steps to ensure that appropriate systems are in place for the assets of the Group to be
adequately safeguarded through the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities and material misstatements.
The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control systems are satisfactory and have not resulted in any
material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s annual report. The Board continues
to take pertinent measures to sustain and, where required, to improve the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
in meeting the Group’s strategic objectives.
This Statement was approved by the Board on 28 September 2021.

Notes:
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(a)

The utilisation of proceeds disclosed above should be read in conjunction with the Prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2018 and announcement
dated 17 July 2020.

(b)

Part of the IPO Proceeds allocated for R&D activities will be allocated to purchase additional machineries for the production of functional
food and skincare products amounting to approximately RM7.57 million.

(c)

For the avoidance of doubt, the last date to utilise the IPO Proceeds will be 20 July 2022, being 48 months from the date of Listing.

(d)

As disclosed in the Prospectus, if the actual listing expenses are lower than estimated, the surplus will be utilised for general working capital purposes of the
Group. The actual listing expenses were less than the estimated listing expenses by approximately RM0.32 million due to overestimation of printing,
advertising expenses, regulatory and professional fees.
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Expenditure incurred for the construction of the GMP-compliant production facility prior to the Listing of the Group was funded
using internally generated funds and was reimbursed from the IPO Proceeds. Listing expenses was funded using internally
generated funds and was reimbursed from the IPO Proceeds.
AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES
Audit fees paid incurred for statutory audit services rendered to the Group by Mazars PLT (“MAZARS” or “External Auditors”) for
the financial year ended 30 June 2021 amounted to RM70,000.
Non-audit fees incurred for the Transfer Listing exercise to the Main Market of Bursa Securities, review of Sustainability Report,
and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control rendered to the Group by the External Auditors for the financial year

2021

Statement of Directors’ Responsibility
In Relation To The Audited Financial
Statements For FYE2021

ended 30 June 2021 amounted to RM21,000.

Pursuant to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial

In considering the nature and scope of the non-audit fees, the Audit Committee was satisfied that they were not likely to create

of the Act and the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

any conflict of interest nor impair the independence and objectivity of the External Auditors.
The audit and non-audit fees mentioned above are also disclosed in Note 21 of the financial statements.

year in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements

The Directors are responsible to ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of both the
Company and the Group at the end of the financial year as well as the results and cash flows of the Company and the Group for

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

the financial year.

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and/or its subsidiary involving the interests of Directors and/

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have:

or major shareholders, either still subsisting at the end of FYE2021 or entered into since the end of the previous financial year.
RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company did not seek any mandate from its shareholders pertaining to recurrent related party transactions of revenue or
trading nature during the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

(a) Adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently;
(b) Made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
(c) Prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis;
The Directors acknowledge the responsibility for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which disclose with

STATEMENT PERTAINING TO THE ALLOCATION OF SHARES UNDER EMPLOYEES SHARE SCHEME

reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and of each of the company which enable them to ensure that the

In FYE2021, the Company did not establish any employees share scheme (“ESS”). In the event the Company establishes such

them to preserve the interest of stakeholders, to safeguard the assets of the Group and to detect and prevent fraud and other

ESS, the Audit Committee would shoulder the responsibility of reviewing all allocations granted to eligible employees to ensure
compliance with the criteria as would have been spelt out in the by-laws of the Company’s proposed ESS.

financial statements comply with the Act. The Directors are also responsible for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
irregularities.
This Statement of Responsibility by Directors is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 28
September 2021.
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for

87

Independent Auditors’ Report

for the year ended 30 June 2021

the financial year ended 30 June 2021.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiary are development, production
and sales of nutraceutical products and skincare products and providing contract manufacture of nutraceutical products.

92

Statements of Financial Position

93

Statements of Comprehensive Income

94

Statements of Changes in Equity

95

Statements of Cash Flows

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
RESULTS

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

Group

Company

(RM)

(RM)

14,556,692

7,299,709

DIVIDENDS
Since the end of the previous financial year, the amount of paid or declared for dividends were as follows:

97

Notes to the Financial Statements

139

Statement by Directors

Dividend per share

Amount

(sen)

(RM)

0.88

2,796,146

- Interim single-tier dividend

0.60

1,906,463

- Special single-tier dividend

1.20

3,812,925

For the financial year ended 30 June 2020:
- Final single-tier dividend *
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021:

140

Statutory Declaration

5,719,388
* Disclosed in the Directors’ Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.
The directors recommend the payment of a final single-tier dividend of 1.20 sen per share amounting to RM3,812,926 for the
financial year ended 30 June 2021, subject to approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if
approved, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 30 June 2022.
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year are shown in the financial statements.
SHARE OPTIONS
No option was granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.
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directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

other body corporate.

The Company did not issue any shares or debentures during the financial year.

The benefits and remuneration of the directors are disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COST

The directors in office during the financial year and to the date of the report are:

During the financial year, the total amount of indemnity coverage and insurance premium paid for the directors of the Company

Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi

are RM500,000 and RM6,991.

Phang Nyie Lin*
Phang Yeen Aun

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Phang Yeen Nung*

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

Munavvar Zubaid Bin Abdul Sattar (Deceased on 6 January 2021)
Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

i.

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for
doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts to be written off and that adequate allowance

Tan Mio Har
* Also the directors of the subsidiary.

had been made for doubtful debts; and
ii.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business including their values as
shown in the accounting records had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had interests in shares as follows:

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances:

Number of ordinary shares
At
1.7.2020

Acquisition

Disposal

i.
30.6.2021

which would render it necessary to write off any debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

At
ii.

Direct - Company

which would render the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading, or

Phang Nyie Lin

25,249,603

-

-

25,249,603

Phang Yeen Nung

25,249,603

-

-

25,249,603

Phang Yeen Aun

25,249,603

-

-

25,249,603

Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi

350,000

-

-

350,000

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

300,000

-

-

300,000

iii. which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of
the Company misleading or inappropriate.
As at the date of this report, there does not exist:
i.

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures
the liabilities of any other person; or

ii.

Indirect - Company
Phang Nyie Lin*
Abdul Manaf Bin Mohamad Radzi*

any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

210,834,212

-

-

210,834,212

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable

170,000

-

-

170,000

within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may affect the

*Disclosure made pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of Companies Act 2016 in relation to interests held by their spouse and children.
Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors in office at the end of the financial year held any interest in the shares of the
Company and its related corporations during the financial year.
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive any
benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by the directors
shown in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company; and other benefits) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with
a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial
statements which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
In the opinion of the directors:
i.

the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year were not substantially affected by any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and

ii.

there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangements whose object is to enable the
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT OCCURRED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD
Significant event occurred during the reporting period is disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.
EVENT OCCURRED AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Event occurred after reporting period is disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Independent
Auditor’s Report

To The Members Of Nova Wellness Group Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

AUDITORS

Opinion

Auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

We have audited the financial statements of Nova Wellness Group Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position

The auditors, Mazars PLT, Chartered Accountants, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

as at 30 June 2021 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial

To the extent permitted by laws, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, as part of the terms of its audit engagement,
against claims arising from the audit. No payment has been made to indemnify the auditors for the current financial year.

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 92 to 138.
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 30 June 2021 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with

APPROVAL OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies

This report is approved by the board of directors, and signed on behalf of the board of directors in accordance with a directors’

Act 2016 in Malaysia.

resolution.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

ABDUL MANAF BIN MOHAMAD RADZI

PHANG NYIE LIN

Director

Director

Kuala Lumpur
28 September 2021

Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
a)

Measurement of Product Development Costs
Refer to “Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and “Intangible Assets” in Notes 4 and 8 to the financial 		
statements respectively.

The risk
The research and development personnel of the Group are involved in the development of new products or the improvement
of existing products. As at 30 June 2021, the carrying amount of product development costs recognised as intangible
assets amounted to RM8.0 million. These include both capitalised development costs available for use and development
costs in-progress as at the financial year end.
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The capitalised development costs available for use are amortised on a straight-line method over its useful life and reviewed

This is identified to be a key audit matter as it requires management to make significant estimation in the assessment of

annually by the management for potential indicators of impairment. The development costs in-progress are subject to

ECL at the reporting date.

impairment assessment, irrespective of whether there are any indication of impairment. In determining the recoverable
amount, management estimates the value in use of the assets. Management assessed the value in use based on approved
cash flow projections and business plan and applied a suitable discount rate to calculate the net present value of those
estimated cash flows.
This is considered a key audit matter, due to the value of the development costs in-progress at the end of financial year and

In addressing the risk, we performed, amongst others, the following procedures:
Tested the accuracy of trade receivables aging at the financial year end on sampling basis.

significant management’s estimates and judgements are required on the underlying key assumptions in the impairment

Obtained understanding of the management’s method and assumptions in estimating the ECL.

assessment.

On sampling basis, assessed the recoverability of trade receivables balances outstanding at the reporting date by

Our response
In addressing the risk, we performed, amongst others, the following procedures:
Updated our understanding on management’s internal process for impairment assessment and reviewed the design and
implementation of key controls implemented by management.
Reviewed status reports prepared by the research and development team of the Group to validate management’s
assessment regarding technical feasibility of the development in-progress.
Obtained value-in-use calculations prepared by management for the development in-progress and tested the
reasonableness of key assumptions used in the calculations, including reviewing the appropriateness of the input data

assessing the collections received after the financial year end.
For those uncollected material amount at the financial year end, we challenged the management on their assessment of
recoverability and the reasonableness of ECL at the reporting date by recalculating the loss rate applied for each aging
buckets at the reporting date.
We do not have key audit matters in connection with the audit of the separate financial statements of the Company to be
communicated in this report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual

in deriving the discount rate with the involvement of our valuation experts.

report of the Company, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’

Performed sensitivity analysis to test the reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions in the cash flow

report thereon.

projections.
b)

Our response:

Recoverability of Trade Receivables
Refer to “Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and “Trade Receivables” in Notes 4 and 11 to the financial
statements and further information on the “Credit Risk Management” in Note 29 to the financial statements.

The risk:
The Group is exposed to credit risk on trade receivables from its customers on sale of its products. In particular, the Group
may suffer financial loss if a customer fails to meet their contractual obligations on the supplied products. As at 30 June
2021, the Group’s trade receivables stood at RM13.4 million.
At the end of the reporting period, management reviews the recoverability of trade receivables. The Group applies the
simplified approach in the measurement of loss allowance for trade receivables. Accordingly, provision matrix was used to
estimate the expected credit losses (“ECL”) taking into account historical payment trend, assessment of customers’ ability
to pay the outstanding balances and where appropriate, adjusted with forward-looking information.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the
Company’s internal control.

MAZARS PLT
201706000496 (LLP0010622-LCA)
AF 001954
Chartered Accountants

RAJVINDERJIT SINGH A/L SAVINDER SINGH
03400/11/2022 J
Chartered Accountant

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

Kuala Lumpur
28 September 2021

on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable actions to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Statements Of
Comprehensive Income

as at 30 June 2021

for the year ended 30 June 2021
Group

Note

Company

2021
(RM)

2020
(RM)

2021
(RM)

2020
(RM)

Non-current assets
Investment properties

5

232,473

234,846

-

-

Property, plant and equipment

6

33,783,768

29,094,410

-

-

Investment in subsidiary

7

-

-

23,640,998

23,640,998

Intangible assets

8

8,049,880

7,469,216

-

-

Other investment

9

5,000,000

3,633,334

-

-

47,066,121

40,431,806

23,640,998

23,640,998

Group
Note

Revenue

19

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income or gains

20

Company

2021
(RM)

2020
(RM)
Restated

2021
(RM)

2020
(RM)

40,481,983

34,266,458

8,046,258

5,559,233

(10,954,840)

(7,671,308)

-

-

29,527,143

26,595,150

8,046,258

5,559,233

1,271,927

1,341,615

5,685

527,547

(5,615,365)

(5,381,309)

(619,258)

(789,311)

(5,320,983)

(4,065,210)

-

-

(573,230)

(987,691)

-

-

Current assets
Inventories

10

14,519,978

10,567,546

-

-

Trade and other receivables

11

15,159,937

12,695,787

40,817,158

42,167,130

33,432

128,614

33,432

128,614

Short term investments

12

25,965,149

30,920,370

-

-

Cash and bank balances

13

1,723,285

1,962,758

46,618

33,949

57,401,781

56,275,075

40,897,208

42,329,693

104,467,902

96,706,881

64,538,206

65,970,691

Current tax asset

TOTAL ASSETS

Administrative and general
expenses
Selling and distribution
expenses
Other expenses
Profit before tax

21

19,289,492

17,502,555

7,432,685

5,297,469

Tax expense

22

(4,732,800)

(4,497,577)

(132,976)

(55,013)

14,556,692

13,004,978

7,299,709

5,242,456

1,366,666

300,000

-

-

15,923,358

13,304,978

7,299,709

5,242,456

4.58

4.09

Equity
Share capital

14

Merger reserve
Fair value reserve

15

Retained earnings

60,074,000

60,074,000

60,074,000

60,074,000

(14,225,998)

(14,225,998)

-

-

3,800,000

2,433,334

-

-

44,296,734

38,255,576

4,440,206

5,656,031

93,944,736

86,536,912

64,514,206

65,730,031

Non-current liabilities

Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be
reclassified to profit
or loss, net of tax

Deferred tax liabilities

16

701,215

240,484

-

-

Government grants

17

5,836,034

5,250,245

-

-

Fair value changes on other

6,537,249

5,490,729

-

-

investment measured at fair
value through other

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

18

Current tax liability
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

3,198,671

3,433,073

24,000

240,660

787,246

1,246,167

-

-

3,985,917

4,679,240

24,000

240,660

10,523,166

10,169,969

24,000

240,660

104,467,902

96,706,881

64,538,206

65,970,691

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Earnings per share - basic
and diluted (sen)

23

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements Of
Changes in Equity

Statements Of
Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2021

for the year ended 30 June 2021

Group

Group
Note

Share
capital
(RM)

Merger
reserve*
(RM)

Fair value
reserve
(RM)

Retained
earnings
(RM)

Total
equity
(RM)

60,074,000

(14,225,998)

2,133,334

28,904,714

76,886,050

Profit for the year

-

-

-

13,004,978

13,004,978

Profit before tax

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

300,000

-

300,000

Adjustments for:

Total comprehensive
income for the year

-

-

300,000

13,004,978

13,004,978

-

-

-

(3,654,116)

(3,654,116)

At 1 July 2019

Dividends

At 30 June 2020

60,074,000

(14,225,998)

2,433,334

38,255,576

86,536,912

Profit for the year

-

-

-

14,556,692

14,556,692

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

1,366,666

-

1,366,666

Total comprehensive
income for the year

-

-

1,366,666

14,556,692

15,923,358

-

-

-

(8,515,534)

60,074,000

(14,225,998)

3,800,000

44,296,734

Dividends

24

At 30 June 2021

Dividends

24

At 30 June 2020

Dividends
At 30 June 2021

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

7,432,685

5,297,469

-

325,182

-

-

(482,672)

-

-

-

Property, plant and equipment written
off

-

2,480

-

-

Write-down of inventories

-

379,023

-

-

Reversal of write-down of inventories

(94,739)

-

-

-

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

(1,000)

(22,500)

-

-

Depreciation of:
- Investment properties

-

-

-

-

(8,515,534)

Amortisation of intangible assets

346,209

252,920

-

-

93,944,736

Amortisation of deferred income

-

(37,635)

-

-

Dividend income

(33,333)

(33,333)

(8,046,258)

(5,559,233)

Interest income

(597,280)

(1,218,542)

(5,685)

(527,547)

924

-

-

-

19,191,352

17,644,454

(619,258)

(789,311)

Changes in inventories

(3,857,693)

(3,186,350)

-

-

Changes in receivables

(1,984,022)

(2,049,200)

-

637,278

(232,782)

117,046

(216,660)

(21,512)

13,116,855

12,525,950

(835,918)

(173,545)

Net unrealised loss on foreign
exchange

Share

Retained

Total

capital

earnings

equity

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

60,074,000

4,067,691

64,141,691

-

5,242,456

5,242,456

-

(3,654,116)

(3,654,116)

60,074,000

5,656,031

65,730,031

-

7,299,709

7,299,709

-

(8,515,534)

(8,515,534)

60,074,000

4,440,206

64,514,206

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Reversal of loss allowance on trade
receivables

Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes

Changes in payables
Cash generated from/
(used in) operations
Interest received

24

17,502,555

2,374

Profit for the year representing, total
comprehensive income for the year

19,289,492

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

491,930

Profit for the year representing, total
comprehensive income for the year

2020
(RM)

2,373

Company

At 1 July 2019

2021
(RM)

761,378

		

Note

2020
(RM)

- Property, plant and equipment

* Merger reserve arose from the difference between the carrying amount of investment in subsidiary and the nominal value of
shares of the subsidiary under merger accounting principle.

2021
(RM)
CASH FLOWS FROM

Loss allowance on trade receivables

24

Company

Tax paid
Net cash generated from/
(used in) operating activities

597,280

1,218,542

5,685

527,547

(4,635,808)

(4,149,045)

(37,794)

(212,006)

9,078,327

9,595,447

(868,027)

141,996

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)
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Group
Note

2021
(RM)

Company
2020
(RM)

2021
(RM)

2020
(RM)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Notes To The
Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

6

(5,450,736)

(7,314,201)

-

-

Development costs

8

(926,873)

(1,677,367)

-

-

Government grants received

17

585,789

1,168,331

-

-

Dividend received from
- other investment

33,333

33,333

-

-

- subsidiary

-

-

9,216,623

2,925,912

Repayment from/(Advances to)
subsidiary

-

-

179,607

(22,518,290)

1,000

22,500

-

-

(5,757,487)

(7,767,404)

9,396,230

(19,592,378)

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used in)/generated
from investing activities

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is a public company limited by way of shares incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The ordinary shares
of the Company are listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The addresses of the principal place of
business and registered office of the Company are stated on page 3.
The principal activity of the Company is in investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiary are disclosed in
Note 7.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Reporting Standards (“MFRS”) issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”), International Financial

Dividends paid

24

Repayment to shareholders
Net cash used in financing
activities

(8,515,534)

(3,654,116)

(8,515,534)

(3,654,116)

-

(4,240,000)

-

(4,240,000)

(8,515,534)

(7,894,116)

(8,515,534)

(7,894,116)

NET CHANGES IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

(5,194,694)

(6,066,073)

12,669

(27,344,498)

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY

32,883,128

38,949,201

33,949

27,378,447

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

27,688,434

32,883,128

46,618

33,949

Cash and bank balances

1,723,285

1,962,758

46,618

33,949

Short term investments

25,965,149

30,920,370

-

-

27,688,434

32,883,128

46,618

33,949

Represented by:

Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for other measurement bases applied,
including fair value, stated in the significant accounting policies set out in Note 3.
Financial Reporting Standards Pronouncements
a)

Application of new or revised standards

In the current financial year, the Group and the Company have applied a number of amendments that become effective
mandatorily for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020.
The adoption of the amendments do not have significant impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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2021
3.

New or revised standards issued that are not yet effective

The Group and the Company have not applied the following amendments that have been issued by the MASB and relevant

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a)

to its operation but are not yet effective:

The financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent and of its subsidiary controlled by the parent

Effective for
financial
periods
beginning on or
after

Amendments to
MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7,
MFRS 4, and MFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark

Amendments to
MFRS 1, MFRS 9, MFRS 16,
and MFRS 141

Annual Improvements to

Basis of combination and consolidation

made up to the end of the financial year.
The parent controls an entity if and only if the parent has all the following:

1 January 2021

•

power over the entity;

•

exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and

•

the ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of the returns.

A subsidiary is consolidated on the purchase method of accounting from the date of acquisition, being the date on

Reform - Phase 2

which the parent obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other

1 January 2022

events in similar circumstances.

MFRS Standards 2018−2020

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation and the consolidated
financial statements reflect external transactions only.

Amendments to
MFRS 3

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to
MFRS 116

Property, Plant and Equipment − Proceeds before Intended
Use

1 January 2022

The parent attributes the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of the
parent and to the non-controlling interests. The parent also attributes total comprehensive income to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

1 January 2022

balance.
Merger accounting for business combinations under common control

Amendments to
MFRS 137
MFRS 17

Onerous Contracts − Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to
MFRS 101

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to
MFRS 101

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to
MFRS 108

Definition of Accounting Estimates

1 January 2022

The business combinations under common control are accounted for in accordance with merger accounting. In

Insurance Contracts

applying merger accounting, the financial statements incorporates the financial statements items of the combining
entities or businesses in which the common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

1 January 2023

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair
1 January 2023

value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination.

1 January 2023

b)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties which are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services for administrative

Amendments to
MFRS 112

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Amendments to
MFRS 10 and
MFRS 128

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

1 January 2023

Single Transaction

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Deferred

Associate or Joint Venture

The above new standard and amendments are not expected to have significant impact on the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company upon their initial application.

purposes.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Building is depreciated on a straight-line basis to its residual value at a rate of 2% per
annum over its estimated useful life.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.
Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their
disposal. On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.
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c)

Property, plant and equipment

iv.

it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

i.

v.

adequate technical, financial and other resources, to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

Recognition and measurement

asset, are available; and

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

vi.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition

Upon commencement of the commercial production of a product, costs on development activities is transferred

of an assets. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of property, plant

to “deferred development costs” and amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit.

and equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is contracted as a consequence of

Development costs comprise of costs that are directly attributable to development activities or that can be

acquiring or using the asset.

allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount when it is probable that future economic

Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its purchase or its completion is recognised as an expense

benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

when it is incurred unless it is probable that the costs will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits

The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised

in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and the costs can be measured and attributed to

in profit or loss when incurred.

the asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the subsequent costs are added to the cost of the intangible asset.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

The capitalised development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life from the point at

expected from their use or disposal. On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

ii.

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

which the asset is available for sale or use.

Depreciation

The estimated useful lives of capitalised development costs are between 5 to 10 years.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment on a straight-

The amortisation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciable amount is determined after deducting the residual
value from the cost.

Product development in-progress are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if the events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may be impaired either individually or at the cash-generating

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated. The annual depreciation rates of other items are:
Buildings
Office equipment

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

8% - 10%

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the profit or loss when the asset is

10% - 12%

Plant and machinery

derecognised.

8% - 12%

Motor vehicles

20%

Renovation

10%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

e)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets with indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually. Assets with finite useful life are assessed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

reporting date.

If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount is the higher

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment are retained in the financial statements until they are no

of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash

longer in use.

flows expected to be derived from the asset. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is

Intangible assets

Research and development
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

101

unit level. Product development in-progress is not amortised.

2%

Furniture and fittings

d)

costs attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably measured.

not possible, for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any reversal of an impairment loss as a result of a subsequent increase in recoverable amount should not exceed

Costs incurred during the development phase of a project are capitalised as an intangible asset under the category

the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation, if applicable) had no

of “product development in-progress” when all the following criteria are fulfilled:

impairment loss been previously recognised for the asset.

i.

it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

ii.

management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

iii.

there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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f)

Inventories

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

Raw materials consist of invoiced value of good purchase and determined on the first-in-first-out basis. The costs

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to

of work-in-progress and finished goods includes materials, labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing

collect contractual cash flows; and

overheads.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less selling and
distribution costs and all other estimated costs to completion.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value shall be recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down occurs. The amount of any reversal of write-down of inventories, arising from change in
circumstances affecting the net realisable value, shall be recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
g)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement
A financial instrument is recognised in the financial statements when, and only when, the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial instrument (other than financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial instruments on initial recognition.

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 		
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when an asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI
Upon initial recognition, management may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.
A financial asset is held for trading if:
it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;
on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the entity manages 		
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
it is a derivative instrument (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument).
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCI and accumulated in a reserve in equity. Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI are not subject to

Financial assets

impairment assessment.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are measured subsequently in the
following manners:
at amortised cost (debt instruments);
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
(debt instruments);

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL, including but not limited to:
Debt instruments that are designated as at FVTPL, if such designation eliminates or significantly 		
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.
Derivative instruments.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to
the extent they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

designated at FVTOCI, without recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments); or
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
The Group has financial assets at amortised cost, equity instruments designated at FVTOCI and financial assets
at FVTPL.

103

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

104

ANNUAL
REPORT

ANNUAL
REPORT

2021

2021
Impairment of Financial Assets

Effective Interest Method

Loss allowance is recognised for expected credit losses (“ECL”) for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL, i.e.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument or a financial

financial assets at amortised cost or FVTOCI and receivables.

liability by allocating interest income/expense over the relevant periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments (including all fees and points paid or received that

ECL is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the

form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through

cash flows that are expected to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The

the expected life of a debt instrument or a financial liability, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument or the

expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

financial liability.

integral to the contractual terms. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

Management measures the loss allowance of trade receivables at an amount equal to their lifetime ECL (i.e.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the obligations under the liabilities are discharged,

simplified approach). The ECL on these financial assets are estimated based on historical credit loss experience,

cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

and where appropriate, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets at amortised cost, where credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL is provided for credit losses that result from default events

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another financial liability from the same lender on substantially

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. For those credit exposures for which there has been a

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is

significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition (instead of on evidence

treated as derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring), a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the financial assets.

Equity Instruments

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Equity instruments issued are recognised at the proceeds received. Costs incurred directly attributable to the
issuance of the equity instruments are accounted for as a deduction from equity.

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset

Repurchase of own equity instruments is deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

expire; or when the financial asset is transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred to another party.

on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of own equity instruments.

If the entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues

Dividends to shareholders are recognised in equity in the period which they are declared.

to control a transferred financial asset, the entity recognises its retained interest in the financial asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the entity retains substantially all the risks and rewards of

h)

Provisions

ownership of a transferred financial asset, the entity continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

event, when it is probable that the entity will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, a provision represents

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the financial asset’s

the present value of estimated future those cash flows.

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. On
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument classified at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously

When some or all of the cash flows required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,

accumulated in the reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

an asset is recognised if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the

i)

Revenue and other income recognition

substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Revenue from a contract with a customer is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred

Financial Liabilities

expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts

to the customer. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract to which the Group

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at FVTPL or at amortised cost.

collected on behalf of third parties.

The Group and the Company only have financial liabilities at amortised cost.

If a contract with a customer contains more than one performance obligation, the total consideration is allocated

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

in the contract.

to each performance obligation based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of the goods or services promised

These financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Sale of Goods

Current Tax

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to a

Current tax is the expected income tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, estimated using the tax rates

customer, generally upon delivery of goods.

enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date.

In measuring the revenue for the sale of goods, the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered

financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, etc. are taken into

probable that there will be a future payment to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate

consideration.

of the amount expected to become payable.

A corresponding receivable is recognised for the consideration that is unconditional when only the passage of

Deferred Tax

time is required before the payment is due. There is no element of significant financing component on the Group’s

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of

revenue transactions as customers are required to pay within a credit term of 30 to 60 days.

assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of

Other Incomes are recognised as follows:

taxable profit, which is accounted using the liability method.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is only recognised
for deductible temporary differences and unutilised tax credit to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
j)

be available in future against which the deductible temporary differences and unutilised tax credit can be utilised.

Government grant

No deferred tax is recognised for temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of: (i) goodwill, or (ii)

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are not recognised until there is reasonable

an asset or liability (which is not in a business combination) at the time of the transaction that affects neither

assurance that: (i) the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and (ii) the grants will be received.

accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Government grants (recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position) are released to profit or

Deferred taxes are measured based on tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the asset

loss on a systematic basis over the financial periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs

or liability is expected to be recovered or settled, and based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at

for which the grants are intended to compensate.

the reporting date that are expected to apply to the financial period when the asset is realised or when the liability
is settled.

A government grant that is receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs, are recognised in profit or loss

m) Foreign currencies

in the financial period in which it becomes receivable.
k)

Transactions and balances in foreign currencies

Employee benefits

i.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency (“foreign currencies”) are recognised at the prevailing

Short term employee benefits

exchange rate on the date of the transaction. At the reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the prevailing exchange rate on that date.

Wages, salaries, paid leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised as an expense (at the
undiscounted amount) in the financial period in which the associated services are rendered by the employees.

ii.

Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of historical costs denominated in foreign currncies are
translated at prevailing exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items which are measured at
fair values denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the prevailing exchange rate on the date when the
fair values were determined.

Defined contribution plan
The Group and the Company make monthly contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”) which is

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

a defined contribution plan.
The obligation of the Group and of the Company is limited to the amount that they agree to contribute to
those defined contribution plans. The contributions to those plans are recognised as an expense when the
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contribution.
l)

n)

Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents include short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Income tax
The income tax expense in profit or loss represents the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, if the tax relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Where deferred tax arises from a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.
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o)

Segment reporting
		
Segment reporting in the financial statements is presented on the same basis as that used by management

Critical judgements

internally for evaluating operating segment performance and in deciding on the allocation of resources to each

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

operating segment. Operating segments are distinguishable components of the Group that engage in business
activities from which they may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate

The following are judgements made by the management in the process of applying the accounting policies that have the

i.

to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s results are reviewed regularly

The management monitors progress of research and development projects on an ongoing basis in accordance with

by the chief operating decision maker to decide on the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its

the Group’s research and development policy. Significant judgement is involved in distinguishing the research and the

performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
p)

development phases of a project.

Fair value

The management capitalises qualifying costs incurred in development phase of a product development project in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Capitalised development costs are measured at cost less accumulated

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The capitalisation of development costs is based on the management’s

between market participants at the measurement date.

judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has

All assets and liabilities, for which fair value is measured or disclosed, are categorised within the fair value

reached a defined milestone according to the Group’s research and development policy. In determining the amounts

hierarchy set out below based on the inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement.

to be capitalised, the management estimates the expected future cash flows of the projects and expected period of
benefits.

Fair value measurements and disclosures are categorised as follows:

q)

Level 1 :

Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets (for identical assets or liabilities).

Level 2 :
		

Inputs (other than quoted prices included within Level 1) are observable either directly (i.e. as 		
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 :

Valuation techniques that include unobservable inputs (not based on observable market data).

Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for
sale.

4.

Capitalisation of development costs

ii.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed certain criteria based
on MFRS 140 Investment Property in making that judgement.
In making its judgement, the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of other
assets held by the Group. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the property,
but also to other assets used in the production or supply process.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply that is held for use in the production or supply of goods and services or for

On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the subsidiary concerned

administrative purposes.

is taken to the profit or loss.

If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

these portions separately.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the

If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is accounted for as an investment property only if an

accounting policies. It also requires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods and services or for administrative purposes.

assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities (if any) at the end of the reporting year and reported

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a

amounts of income and expenses during the financial year.

property does not qualify as investment property.

Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, historical experiences
and various other factors, including expectations for future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are evaluated on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
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v.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Income tax

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources associated with estimation uncertainty at the reporting

Significant estimation is involved in determining the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and

date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are as

computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group

follows:

recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the

i.

final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The management estimates the useful lives and residual values of these

impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
5.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

assets. Changes in the expected level of usage, physical wear and tear and technological developments could impact
the economic useful lives and residual values of these assets, and therefore future depreciation would be revised.

ii.

Impairment and amortisation of intangible assets
The management assesses whether there is any indication that capitalised development costs are impaired as at
each reporting date. Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the management also performed
impairment assessment annually for development costs in-progress that are not yet available for use at the reporting

Group
2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

303,683

303,683

68,837

66,463

Freehold land and building
At cost
Balance as at 1 July/30 June

date. The management estimates impairment by comparing the carrying amount of development costs in progress
of development costs in-progress. The value in use is the net present value of the estimated future cash flows derived

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 July

from development costs capitalised, based on a discount rate determined by the management. The management

Depreciation charged

2,373

2,374

Balance as at 30 June

71,210

68,837

232,473

234,846

with its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use

estimates future cash flows based on the asset’s or cash generating unit’s operating results, approved business plans,
industry trends as well as future economic conditions, changes in market conditions and other available information
at the reporting date.
Capitalised development costs available for use are amortised on a straight line basis to write off the cost over its
estimated useful lives. The management estimates the useful lives of development costs capitalised. Changes in the
expected level of application, market conditions and technological developments could impact the economic useful
lives of development costs capitalised, and therefore future amortisation would be revised.

iii.

Determining the loss allowances for trade receivables
Management assesses the ECL for trade receivables at each reporting date. Credit losses are the difference between
the contractual cash flows that are due to the entity and the cash flows that it actually expects to receive. Management
applies simplified approach of MFRS 9 Financial Instruments in assessing the impairment of trade receivables

Carrying amount

The fair value of investment properties at the reporting date is RM500,000 (2020: RM740,000). The fair value represents the
amount at which the properties could be exchanged on an open market basis between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a
knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length transaction including the highest and best use of the properties at the reporting
date.
The fair value of the investment properties is derived based on comparison approach by reference to observed market price of
other similar property transactions. Estimated fair value of comparable properties in close proximity is adjusted for differences
in key attributes such as location and property size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per square
foot of comparable properties.

In determining the ECL, management uses historical credit loss experience for trade receivables to estimate the ECL.
Management is not only required to consider historical information that is adjusted to reflect the effects of current
conditions and information that provides objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired in relation to incurred
losses, but management is also considering, when applicable, reasonable and supportable information that may
include current and future economic conditions when estimating the ECL, on a collective basis. The need to consider
forward-looking information means that management exercises considerable judgement as to how changes in
macroeconomic factors will affect the ECL on trade receivables.

iv.

Measurement of inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In estimating net realisable values, the
management considers the evidence available at the time the estimates are made, including its inventory levels, sales
trends, approved business plan and market conditions. The Group’s products are exposed to economic and technology
changes which may cause selling prices to change rapidly. The actual net realisable value of inventories may be
different from the management’s estimation of net realisable values.
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20,773,390

8,594,000

-

-

Write Off
At 30.6.2021

19,633,037

(180,194)
932,850

-

Written off
At 30.6.2020

92,998

884,074

-

-

35,887

848,187

977,072

-

124,406

873,621

(1,415)

-

27,258

847,778

998,027

(1,415)

963,168
36,274

(RM)

(RM)
977,072
-

Office
equipment

Furniture

148,503

904,722

(1,100)

-

32,201

873,621

1,053,225

-

(1,100)

-

56,298

and fittings

58,710

918,362

-

-

34,288

884,074

977,072

-

-

-

-

998,027

(RM)

(RM)
977,072

Office
equipment

Furniture
and fittings

Plant and

922,850

4,468,341

-

-

231,411

4,236,930

5,391,191

-

-

5,151,123
240,068

(RM)

machinery

Plant and

2,123,811

4,785,090

-

(18,000)

334,749

4,468,341

6,908,901

-

-

(18,000)

1,535,710

5,391,191

(RM)

machinery

514,300

250,881

-

(208,975)

109,123

350,733

765,181

-

541,372
432,784
(208,975)

(RM)

Motor vehicles

396,975

396,180

-

-

145,299

250,881

793,155

-

-

-

27,974

765,181

(RM)

Motor vehicles

23,529

118,528

-

-

-

Total

17,010,025

-

-

29,094,410

7,528,295

(181,609)

491,930
(208,975)

-

7,426,949

36,622,705

29,701,568
7,314,201
(208,975)
(184,089)

(RM)

Total

33,783,768

8,270,573

(1,100)

(18,000)

761,378

7,528,295

42,054,341

-

(1,100)

(18,000)

5,450,736

36,622,705

(RM)

-

-

17,010,025

112,460
		
6,068

142,057

-

10,404,950
6,605,075

(RM)
142,057
-

in progress

(RM)

Capital work

2,779,781

-

-

-

-

-

2,779,781

(18,028,238)

-

-

3,797,994

17,010,025

(RM)

in progress

Renovation

48,951

125,866

-

-

7,338

118,528

174,817

-

-

-

32,760

142,057

(RM)

Renovation

Capital work

Included in property, plant and equipment are assets at cost of RM4,647,545 (2020: RM4,576,984) which have been fully depreciated but are still in use.

30.6.2020

amount at
1,812,302

-

Disposals

8,594,000

82,183

-

Carrying

1,030,861

-

2,745,152

8,594,000

Depreciation

(182,674)

-

At 1.7.2019

depreciation

Accumulated

At 30.6.2020

Write off

Disposals

2,927,826
-

(RM)

(RM)
8,594,000
-

Buildings

Freehold land

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 1.7.2019
Additions

2020
Cost

Group

6.

30.6.2021

amount at
8,594,000

-

-

Disposals

Carrying

207,503

-

Depreciation

1,140,353

932,850

-

At 1.7.2020

depreciation

Accumulated

At 30.6.2021

18,028,238

-

Transfer

-

-

-

-

2,745,152

8,594,000

(RM)

(RM)

Write Off

Disposals

Additions

Buildings

Freehold land

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 1.7.2020

2021
Cost

Group

6.
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

8.

Company
2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group

development

At cost
Unquoted shares in Malaysia

23,640,998

Capitalised
costs available

Development

for use

costs in-progress

Total

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

2,051,751

4,298,720

6,350,471

203,892

1,473,475

1,677,367

2,255,643

5,772,195

8,027,838

23,640,998

Product development costs
The detail of the subsidiary is as follow:

Cost
Effective

Name of subsidiary

Principal place of
business and place of
incorporation

ownership and voting interest
2021

2020

At 1 July 2019
Additions
At 30 June 2020
Additions

Nova Laboratories Sdn Bhd
(“Nova Lab”)

Transfer from/(to)
Malaysia

100%

100%

Nova Lab is primarily engaged in development, production and sales of nutraceutical products and skincare products and providing

At 30 June 2021

-

926,873

926,873

621,613

(621,613)

-

2,877,256

6,077,455

8,954,711

contract manufacture of nutraceutical products.

Accumulated amortisation

The subsidiary is audited by Mazars PLT.

At 1 July 2019

305,702

-

305,702

Amortisation

252,920

-

252,920

At 30 June 2020

558,622

-

558,622

Amortisation

346,209

-

346,209

At 30 June 2021

904,831

-

904,831

At 30 June 2021

1,972,425

6,077,455

8,049,880

At 30 June 2020

1,697,021

5,772,195

7,469,216

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

617,618

560,603

Net carrying amount

The product development costs include the following expenses:

Employee benefits expense (Note 25)
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As at 30 June 2021, the individual intangible asset of which carrying amount is more than 6% (2020: 6%) of the total

9.

OTHER INVESTMENT
Group

intangible assets are as follows:
2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

Development costs in-progress-1

5,012,364

4,707,105

Development costs in-progress-2

500,000

500,000

Quoted equity investment

(RM)

(RM)

5,000,000

3,633,334

The investment is not held for trading. Instead, it is held for medium to long term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the directors

development costs in-progress is based on its value in use. When the recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amounts

have elected to designate the investment to be measured at FVTOCI.

of the development costs in-progress, and no impairment loss is recognised.

plan, covering a specific timeframe that reflects the market trend and the product life cycle, i.e. product development and testing,

2020

Measured at FVTOCI

At the end of the reporting period, the development costs in-progress were tested for impairment. The recoverable amount of the

The value in use is determined using a discounted cash flow model, based on approved cash flow projections and business

2021

10.

INVENTORIES
Group

product registration and commercialisation.
The value in use computation is based on the following key assumptions:
The revenue, revenue growth, operating costs and margins are based on the respective product life cycle
and products under development according to an approved business plan. The business plan is based on past
experience, current market share, assessment of consumer market trend, expected demand for products
under development, expectations of market growth and general inflation in Malaysia. The approved cash flow
projections covering the product life cycle ranging between 5 to 10 years.

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

11,091,701

8,366,934

692,843

445,944

2,735,434

1,754,668

14,519,978

10,567,546

The discount rate of 5.4% (2020: 7%) is used, which is the management’s estimation that reflects the current market assessment
applicable to the industry.
Completed product development will be available for use and registered within the estimated timeframe.
Sensitivity analysis
The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the estimated product development in-progress costs projected, sales volume
and discount rate. The sensitivity analysis did not indicate any impairment when variations are applied to the key assumptions.
The product development in-progress costs may suffer impairment loss should any of the following event occurs:
Budgeted product development costs increased by 102% (2020: 108%) or more;
Projected sales volume declined by 9% (2020: 32%) or more; or
Discount rate increased to 9% (2020: 13%) or higher.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Note

Trade receivables

Group

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Group

Company

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

25,965,149

30,920,370

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

13,660,517

10,686,639

-

-

Designated at FVTPL

(265,439)

(748,111)

-

-

Money market funds in Malaysia

13,395,078

9,938,528

-

-

Short term investments represent placements in highly liquid money market. These placements are designated to

292,131

191,114

-

-

-

-

36,426,090

36,605,697

(a)

Less: Loss Allowance

Other receivables
- Third parties
- Amount owing by subsidiary (b)
Dividend receivable from
subsidiary
Prepayments
Deposits

-

-

4,388,868

5,559,233

1,453,973

2,551,264

2,200

2,200

18,755

14,881

-

-

15,159,937

12,695,787

40,817,158

42,167,130

(a) Trade receivables are generally on terms of 30 to 60 (2020: 30 to 60) days. The credit terms may be extended above 60 days

manage free cash flows and to optimise working capital requirements of the Group.
13.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Group

Fixed deposits
Cash and bank balances

Company

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

260,550

256,283

-

-

1,462,735

1,706,475

46,618

33,949

1,723,285

1,962,758

46,618

33,949

The currency profile of cash and bank balances is as follows:

based on the assessment and discretion of the directors.

Group

(b) Amount owing by subsidiary is non-trade, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Company

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

1,695,449

1,814,938

46,618

33,949

27,836

147,820

-

-

1,723,285

1,962,758

46,618

33,949

The currency profile of trade and other receivables is as follows:
RM
Group

RM

Company

USD

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

13,833,694

10,354,777

40,817,158

42,167,130

1,326,243

2,341,010

-

-

15,159,937

12,695,787

40,817,158

42,167,130

United States Dollar
(“USD”)
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16.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Group / Company
2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

At 1 July
Cash flows:

-

4,240,000

- Repayment during the year

-

(4,240,000)

At 30 June

-

-

Group
2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

Balance as at 1 July

240,484

228,971

Recognised in profit or loss

460,731

11,513

Balance as at 30 June

701,215

240,484

Amounts owing to shareholders

14.

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to:

Temporary differences arising from:

SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2021

2020

Number

Amount

Number

Amount

of shares

(RM)

of shares

(RM)

Issued and fully paid

17.

Property, plant and equipment

833,148

349,994

Loss allowance on trade receivables

(63,705)

(109,510)

Write down of inventories

(68,228)

-

Balance as at 30 June

701,215

240,484

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

ordinary shares:
At 1 July/30 June

15.

Group
317,743,815

60,074,000

317,743,815

60,074,000

FAIR VALUE RESERVE

2020

(RM)

(RM)

5,250,245

4,119,549

As disclosed in Note 9, the Group has elected to recognise the changes in the fair value of other investment in other

Received during the year

585,789

1,168,331

comprehensive income. Accordingly, the net changes in the fair value of the other investment will be shown in this

Released to profit or loss

-

(37,635)

5,836,034

5,250,245

reserve and will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Balance as at 1 July

2021

Balance as at 30 June

Government grants received are to finance the product development activities and acquisition of equipment for research
activities. There are no unfulfilled conditions attached to the grants received.
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Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers has been presented in the segmental information, Note 26 to the

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

financial statements, which has been presented on business segment and geographical segment from which the revenue
Group
Note

Trade payables

(a)

Other payables
Sales and Service Tax payable
Accruals

transactions originated.

Company

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

Information about performance obligations in revenue from contracts with customers are as follows:
i.		 Sale of goods

75,615

289,054

-

-

297,695
62,721

455,963
35,692

-

65,420

2,762,640

2,652,364

24,000

175,240

3,198,671

3,433,073

24,000

240,660

Timing of revenue recognition

-

and accepted by the customers at designated location.
Significant payment terms

-

Credit period of 30 to 60 days from invoice date.

Variable element in consideration

-

Discounts are given to customers whom participate
in Nova Wellness Partnership Programme (“NWPP”)
provided that customers achieve minimum purchase

(a) The normal credit terms granted by suppliers ranged between 30 and 60 (2020: 30 and 60) days.

value.

The currency profile of trade and other payables is as follows:
Obligation for returns or refunds
Group

RM
USD

19.

for situation where defects caused solely due to the 		

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

3,195,163

3,422,718

24,000

240,660

3,508

10,355

-

-

3,198,671

3,433,073

24,000

240,660

Group

No return policy is practised by the Group, except
Group.

Warranty
ii.		

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

-

Not applicable.

-

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered

Contract Manufacturing
Timing of revenue recognition

and accepted by the customers at designated location.

Company

Revenue from contracts with customers

Significant payment terms

-

Credit period of 30 to 60 days from invoice date.

Variable element in consideration

-

Not applicable.

Obligation for returns or refunds

-

No-return policy is practised by the Group, except
for situation where defects solely due to the Group.

Warranty

-

Not applicable.

Financing component is not recognised at contract inception, as management expects that the period between when the

recognised at a point in time
- Contract manufacturing

-

Company

2021

REVENUE

- Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered

promised good or service is transferred to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be less than
35,316,802

27,362,223

-

-

5,165,181

6,904,235

-

-

-

-

8,046,258

5,559,233

40,481,983

34,266,458

8,046,258

5,559,233

one year.

Other revenue
- Dividend income from
subsidiary
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Group
2021

22.

Company

TAX EXPENSE
Group

2021

2020

(RM)

2020
(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

-

37,635

-

-

597,280

1,218,542

5,685

527,547

Dividend income from other investment

33,333

33,333

-

-

Sundry income

24,767

24,228

-

-

Deferred tax

482,672

-

-

-

- current year

Amortisation of deferred income
Interest income

Reversal of loss allowance on trade
receivables
Reversal of write down of inventories
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on foreign exchange
- Realised
- Unrealised

-

1,000

22,500

-

-

-

-

- current year
- prior year

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

4,133,078

4,398,681

-

55,013

138,991

87,383

132,976

-

4,272,069

4,486,064

132,976

55,013

795,292

29,620

-

-

(334,561)

(18,107)

-

-

4,732,800

4,497,577

132,976

55,013

The difference between tax expense and the amount of tax determined by multiplying the profit before tax to the applicable
36,516
1,620

5,377
-

1,271,927

1,341,615

5,685

527,547

tax rate is analysed as follows:
Group

Group

Company

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

19,289,492

17,502,555

7,432,685

5,297,469

4,629,478

4,200,613

1,783,844

1,271,393

460,224

280,474

147,258

117,836

- non-taxable income

(161,332)

(52,786)

(1,931,102)

(1,334,216)

Adjustments for prior year

(195,570)

69,276

132,976

-

4,732,800

4,497,577

132,976

55,013

Tax at statutory tax rate

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

Profit before tax is stated after charging:

10,954,840

7,671,308

-

-

Loss allowance on trade receivables

-

325,182

-

-

Write-down of inventories

-

379,023

-

-

70,000

64,000

17,000

15,000

7,000

12,000

7,000

7,000

346,209

252,920

-

-

2,373

2,374

-

-

761,378

491,930

-

-

2,480

-

-

573,230

284,468

-

165,684

-

-

-

2,544

-

-

-

Company

2021

Profit before tax

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

2020

(RM)

The corporation income tax rate in Malaysia is 24% (2020: 24%).

Government grants received towards research and development of the Group’s products.
21.

2021
Current tax

- prior year
94,739

Company

Tax effects arising from:
- non-deductible expenses

The Group and the Company are on the single tier tax system. Accordingly, any dividend distributed by the Company is
exempted from tax in the hands of the shareholders.

Auditors’ remuneration:
- Statutory audit
- Other
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of:
- Investment properties
- Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Research and development expenditure

-

Loss on foreign exchange
- Realised
- Unrealised
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2021
EARNINGS PER SHARE

25.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued.

Group
2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

6,844,881

5,868,074

-

-

Directors’ fee

162,000

180,000

162,000

180,000

EPF contributions

783,047

672,476

-

-

Other benefits

819,892

576,848

-

-

8,609,820

7,297,398

162,000

180,000

(617,618)

(560,603)

-

-

7,992,202

6,736,795

162,000

180,000

Group
2021
Earnings attributable to owners of the Company

14,556,692

2020
Salaries, wages and other emoluments

13,004,978

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purposes of basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (sen)

317,743,815

317,743,815

4.58

4.09

The basic and diluted earnings per share are equal as there is no potential dilutive ordinary shares as at the end of the
Less:

reporting periods.

Capitalised into intangible assets (Note 8)
24.

DIVIDENDS

Company

Sen per share

Total amount
(RM)
26.

Financial year ended 30 June 2021:
Final single-tier 2020 ordinary

0.88

2,796,146

Interim single-tier 2021 ordinary

0.60

1,906,463

Special single-tier 2021 ordinary

1.20

3,812,925
8,515,534

Financial year ended 30 June 2020:
Final single-tier 2019 ordinary

0.60

1,906,463

Interim single-tier 2020 ordinary

0.55

1,747,653
3,654,116

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The board of directors of the Company are the chief operating decision-maker, and are responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to each segment, and those items that can be
allocated to each segment on a reasonable basis.
Business Segments
The Group operates in the nutraceutical industry, where it is principally involved in the following core activities:
House-brand products segment:
Development, production and sales of nutraceutical and skincare products under house brands.

The directors recommend the payment of a final single-tier dividend of 1.20 sen per share amounting to RM3,812,926
for the financial year ended 30 June 2021, subject to approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend.

Contract manufacturing and services segment:
Development and production of nutraceutical products for contract customers under their brand.

Such dividend, if approved, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year
ending 30 June 2022.
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2021
House-

Contract

brand

manufacturing

products

and services

Total

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

Revenue

35,316,802

5,165,181

40,481,983

Segment results

26,335,706

3,191,437

29,527,143

2021

Unallocated corporate expenses

(10,237,651)

Profit before tax

19,289,492

Tax expense

(4,732,800)

Profit for the year

14,556,692

Other information:
8,049,880

-

8,049,880

Inventories

13,934,380

14,519,978

Trade receivables

12,627,479

585,598
767,599

13,395,078

1,353,197

35,964,936

34,611,739
Unallocated corporate assets

68,502,966

Total segment assets

104,467,902

Liabilities
Government grants

5,836,034

-

Unallocated corporate liabilities

5,836,034
4,687,132

Total segment liabilities

10,523,166

Included in operating profit:
Amortisation of intangible assets

Contract

brand

manufacturing

products

and services

Total

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

Revenue

27,324,223

6,942,235

34,266,458

Segment results

22,255,295

4,339,855

26,595,150

2020

Unallocated corporate expenses

(9,092,595)

Profit before tax

17,502,555

Tax expense

(4,497,577)

Profit for the year

13,004,978

Other information:
Assets

Assets
Intangible assets

House-

346,209

-

346,209

Reversal of write down of inventories*

-

-

(94,739)

Reversal of loss of allowance on trade receivables*

-

-

(482,672)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment*

-

-

761,378

Intangible assets
Inventories
Trade receivables

-

7,469,216

10,273,612

293,934

10,567,546

7,700,092

2,238,436

9,938,528

25,442,920

2,532,370

27,975,290

7,469,216

Unallocated corporate assets

68,731,591

Total segment assets

96,706,881

Liabilities
Government grants

5,250,245

-

Unallocated corporate liabilities

5,250,245
4,919,724

Total segment liabilities

10,169,969

Included in operating profit:
Amortisation of intangible assets

252,920

-

252,920

Write down of inventories

286,889

92,134

379,023

Loss of allowance on trade receivables*

-

-

325,182

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment*

-

-

491,930

Property, plant and equipment write off*

-

-

2,480

*These expense items are monitored on overall based on Group’s internal reporting, hence no segment information is
presented.
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Geographical Segments

27.

Revenues from external customers attributed to Malaysia and all other geographical areas, i.e. the location of the customers,
from which the Group derived revenue:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
a)

In addition to the related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, significant
related party transactions during the financial year are as follows:

Malaysia
Others

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

2021

2020

2021

2020

39,983,470

33,731,404

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

498,513

535,054

40,481,983

34,266,458

64,301

20,377

-

-

5,351

8,855

-

-

39,652

28,855

-

-

Group

Transactions with directors, shareholders
and their close family members
Sale of goods

No geographical information for non-current assets is disclosed, as the Group operates only in Malaysia.
Major Customers

Transactions with a company in which a

The following are major customers with revenue contribution equal or more than 5% of the Group’s total revenue:

Company has financial interest

close family member of a director of the
Sale of goods

Revenue
2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

Segment
House-brand

Customer A

6,926,706

4,420,203

products
Contract
manufacturing

Customer B

Company

2,103,957

1,825,283

and services

Transactions with key management
personnel
Sale of goods
b)

Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Group and the Company are those having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and the Company either directly or indirectly.
Group

Company

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

Directors’ fee

162,000

180,000

162,000

180,000

Salaries and bonuses

926,270

866,380

-

-

EPF contributions

107,790

103,980

-

-

1,196,060

1,150,360

162,000

180,000

Directors
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Group

(b)		

Company

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

EPF contributions

28.

932,318

-

-

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments of the Group and of the Company at the reporting

140,765

110,633

-

-

date approximate their fair values.

1,313,285

1,042,951

-

-

2,509,345

2,193,311

162,000

180,000

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the financial instruments are as
follows:

Financial instruments

Fair value determination

Other investment

By reference to quoted market price of the investee company at
the reporting date.

Classification of financial instruments
Group

Company

Short term investments

2021

2020

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

Amortised cost
- Trade and other receivables
- Cash and bank balances

13,705,964

10,144,523

814,958

42,164,930

1,723,285

1,962,758

46,618

33,949

15,429,249

12,107,281

861,576

42,198,879

provided by fund managers.
The Group’s financial assets carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy in which the different
Total

(RM)

(RM)

2021
Other investment

25,965,149

30,920,370

-

-

5,000,000

-

5,000,000

-

25,965,149

25,965,149

2020
Other investment

- Other investment

Short term investments

5,000,000

3,633,334

-

-

Financial liabilities

3,633,334

-

3,633,334

-

30,920,370

30,920,370

There is no financial instrument classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Amortised cost

NOVA WELLNESS GROUP BERHAD (1196094-M)

Level 2

(RM)

Group

FVTOCI

- Trade and other payables

Level 1

Short term investments

FVTPL
- Short-term investments

By reference to statements of account at the reporting date

levels have been defined as follows:

Financial assets

133

settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced

1,172,520

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a)		

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged or
or liquidation sale.

Other key management personnel
Salaries and bonuses

Fair value of financial instruments

3,135,950

3,397,381

24,000

240,660

During the financial year, there were no transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: none).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The risk profile of receivables and the provision matrix as at the reporting date which is trade in nature are as follows:

The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks. Board of directors sets policies, manages and

Group

Expected credit loss
rate

Loss

amount

amount

allowances

(RM)

%

(RM)

(RM)

-

7,387,466

-

7,387,466

30 days and below

-

2,293,842

-

2,293,842

31 to 60 days

-

1,447,331

-

1,447,331

61 to 90 days

-

826,555

-

826,555

15.57%

1,705,323

(265,439)

1,439,884

13,660,517

(265,439)

13,395,078

effects arising from these risks on the financial position and financial performance of the Group.
and measured.
a)

2021
Not past due

Credit risk

Past due:

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise should a counterparty default on its obligations.
The Group has significant concentration of credit risk arising from 5 (2020: 4) major customers that represent
approximately 53% (2020: 48%) of the gross trade receivables at the end of the reporting period. Trade receivables
from other customers were individually below 4% (2020: 5%) of total gross trade receivables at the end of the

91 days and above

reporting period. Nevertheless, the management has a credit policy in place to ensure that transactions are
conducted with creditworthy counterparties. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of

Expected credit loss
rate

accounts receivable.

is disclosed in Note 11. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

2020

Management applies simplified approach (i.e. lifetime expected credit losses) in measuring the loss allowance
for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by

Not past due

Gross

Gross

carrying

Loss

carrying

amount

allowances

amount

%

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

0.45%

5,397,437

(24,133)

5,373,304

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of its financial assets other than cash and cash equivalents

reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ credit worthiness, adjusted for

Past due:

factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and

30 days and below

1.82%

2,657,046

(48,265)

2,608,781

an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

31 to 60 days

8.32%

1,160,302

(96,530)

1,063,772

61 to 90 days

24.06%

802,364

(193,061)

609,303

91 days and above

57.67%

669,490

(386,122)

283,368

10,686,639

(748,111)

9,938,528

The movements in loss allowances for trade receivables is as follows:
Group

At 1 July
Loss allowance
Reversal of loss allowance
At 30 June

135

Carrying

carrying

monitors the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group. The Group seeks to mitigate the potential adverse
There is no significant change to the Group’s exposure to financial risks or the manner in which these risks are managed

Gross
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2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

748,111

422,929

-

325,182

(482,672)

-

265,439

748,111
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Receivables that are past due but not impaired

c)

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM6,007,612 (2020: RM4,565,224) that are past due at the reporting date but not

The Group manages its liquidity and cash flow profiles to ensure that business operations maintain optimum levels of liquidity

impaired respectively. These balances relate to a number of diversified customers that have good track records with the Group

at all times sufficient to meet contractual obligations as and when they fall due. The Group maintains sufficient banking facility

and the directors are of the view that these receivables are recoverable.

to further reduce liquidity risk.

Other receivables and other financial assets are subject to insignificant credit loss as management does not expect any losses

Therefore, the Group seeks to ensure that its business operation through efficient working capital management (i.e. accounts

arising from non-performance by these counterparties. The Company’s credit risk is in respect of the outstanding amount owing

receivable, short-term investments, inventories and accounts payable management), must be able to convert its current assets

by subsidiary, which is considered negligible as the outstanding amount forms part of the Group’s treasury management policy.

into cash and meet all demands for payment as and when they fall due.

A receivable is written off when there is evidence indicating that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery based on

The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities at the reporting date are expected to be settled within next 12 months.

management’s internal assessment or when the receivable has suffered a loss.

d)

Credit risk on liquid funds is minimal because the Company only deals with reputable licensed banks.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from its investment in quoted shares listed in Malaysia. This investment is

b)

Liquidity and cash flow risks

Price risk

classified as financial asset at FVTOCI.

Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of its ordinary course of business when the currency denomination
differs from its functional currency. Exposures to foreign currency risk are monitored on an ongoing basis.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are disclosed in
respective notes.

The analysis below assumes that all other variables remain constant and the Group’s other investment moved in correlation with
the quoted market price.
A 10% strengthening in quoted market price at the end of the reporting period would increase other comprehensive income by
RM500,000 (2020: RM363,000). A 10% weakening in quoted market price would have had equal but opposite effect on other
comprehensive income for the financial year.

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk relating to USD.
30.

Sensitivity analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Group

The following table details the sensitivity of the Group’s profit after tax to a 10% increase and decrease of USD against
the functional currency of the Group, assuming all other variables remain unchanged. 10% represents management’s

2021

2020

assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates. A positive/negative number below indicates a

(RM)

(RM)

168,000

-

1,949,000

7,566,000

2,117,000

7,566,000

gain/loss respectively in the profit or loss where RM strengthens 10% against USD. For a 10% weakening of RM against the
USD, there would be an equal and opposite impact on profit or loss.

-contracted
-not contracted

Group

USD

Property, plant and equipment:

2021

2020

(RM)

(RM)

103,000

188,000

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at the reporting date does not
reflect the exposure throughout the financial year.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objective when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s and
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising shareholders’ returns.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and in light of changes in economic
conditions, when necessary, obtains borrowings to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholders’ returns.
The overall strategy of the Group remains unchanged since the previous year.

Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016
We, Abdul Manaf bin Mohamad Radzi and Phang Nyie Lin, being two of the directors of Nova Wellness Group Berhad, do hereby

The capital structure of the Group comprises equity, i.e. issued capital, merger reserve, fair value reserves and

state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 92 to 138 are drawn up

retained earnings.

so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2021 and financial

The Group has complied with capital requirement for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.
32.

Statement By
Directors

SIGNIFICANT EVENT OCCURRED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD
The COVID-19 pandemic has affected the country and resulted in border closures, workplace closures,
movement control orders and other measures imposed by the governments. Management assessed the spread

performance and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia.

Signed on behalf of the directors in accordance with a directors’ resolution.

of COVID-19 pandemic and concluded that it did not have any significant impact on the operations of the Group as
the Group was able to operate as essential services under strict operating condition throughout the financial
year except for period from 12 July 2021 to 18 July 2021 where the Group temporarily stopped operations for 7 days for

ABDUL MANAF BIN MOHAMAD RADZI

PHANG NYIE LIN

quarantine purposes under guidance from the Ministry of Health due to several positive cases of COVID-19 infection

Director

Director

among the factory workers. This temporary closure did not have a significant impact on the financial performance of the
Group.
The Group will continue to focus on growing its market share and continuing its research and development on its new
products despite the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in the next financial year ending 30 June 2022.

Kuala Lumpur
28 September 2021

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date have been reviewed
and found to be appropriate taking into consideration of any possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic. However, as the
global COVID-19 situation remains fluid at the date of the financial statements, management cannot reasonably
ascertain the full extent of probable impact, if any, to the Group’s financial results for future periods.
33.

EVENT OCCURRED AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
On 9 September 2021, the Company announced that it proposed to establish an employees’ share option scheme of up
to 15% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if any) for the eligible directors
and employees of the Company and its subsidiary (“Proposed ESOS”).
Subject to the prevailing legislation and the Main Market Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”) of the Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”), the Proposed ESOS will be satisfied by way of issuance of new shares of
the Company. The proceeds arising from the exercise of the Proposed ESOS will be utilised for future working capital
requirements of the Group. The Proposed ESOS is not conditional upon any other corporate exercise or scheme being or
proposed to be undertaken by the Company.
On 22 September 2021, the Company further announced that Bursa Malaysia has resolved to approve the Proposed
ESOS, subject to the Company complying to the relevant provisions under the Listing Requirements.

34.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were authorised for issue on 28 September 2021 by the board of directors.
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Statutory
Declaration

List Of
Properties

Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

Held as at 30 June 2021

I, Chow Siew Meng, being the person primarily responsible for the accounting records and financial management of Nova
Wellness Group Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the accompanying

No.

Location

Tenure

Usage

Land area/
Built-up area

Year of
Valuation

Approximate
NBV
age of building (RM’000)
(Years)

1

Lot 708, Nova
Avenue, 43950
Sungai Pelek,
Sepang, Selangor,
Malaysia.

Freehold

Head Office,
Production
Facilities, R&D
Facility,
Warehouse,
GMP-Compliant
Production Facility

22,257 sq.m./
17,133 sq.m.

30 August 2017

15

28,227,037

2

Lot 11195,
Pekan Sungai Gadut,
Daerah Seremban,
Negeri Sembilan

Freehold

Vacant

485 sq.m./
183.47 sq.m.

16 August 2018

31

151,107

3

Lot 21874,
Pekan Sungai Gadut,
Daerah Seremban,
Negeri Sembilan

Freehold

Vacant

266 sq.m./
183.47 sq.m.

16 August 2018

31

81,366

financial statements set out on pages 92 to 138 are correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the
same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared
by the abovenamed
Chow Siew Meng
at Kuala Lumpur
in the Federal Territory
this 28 September 2021
Before me :
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Analysis Of
Shareholdings

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
(as per Register of Directors’ Shareholdings)
								Direct Interest
Name of Director

As at 13 September 2021

%

No. of Shares

%

350,000

0.11

#170,000

0.05

Phang Nyie Lin

25,249,603

7.95

*210,834,212

66.35

Phang Yeen Nung

25,249,603

7.95

-

-

Phang Yeen Aun

25,249,603

7.95

-

-

300,000

0.09

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total number of issued shares

: 317,743,815

Class of shares 			

: Ordinary shares

Voting rights 			

: One vote per ordinary share

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

No. of shareholders		

: 2696

Tan Mio Har

Sulaiman Bin Haji Ahmad

* Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Act through the shareholdings of Tan Sok Mooi, Phang Yeen Nung, Phang Yeen Aun and Phang Yeen Hung

DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Size of Shareholdings
1 to 99
100 to 1,000
1,001 to 10,000

in the Company.

% of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares Held

% of Shares
Held

10

0.37

200

0.01

15.21

273,400

TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS AS PER RECORD OF DEPOSITORS

410

0.08

(without aggregating the securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same Depositors)

1,441

53.45

7,727,700

2.43
7.24

No.

Name

1

Tan Sok Mooi

2
3

10,001 to 100,000

722

26.78

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares

108

4.00

50,648,500

15.94

5

0.19

236,083,815

74.30

2,696

100.00

317,743,815

100.00

TOTAL

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(as per Register of Substantial Shareholders and excluding bare trustee)
								Direct Interest
Name of Substantial Shareholder

# Deemed interest pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of Companies Act 2016 in relation to interests held by their spouse and children.

No. of
Shareholders

23,010,200

5% and above of the issued shares

Indirect Interest

No. of Shares Held

%

135,085,403

42.51

Phang Nyie Lin

25,249,603

7.95

Phang Yeen Aun

25,249,603

7.95

4

Phang Yeen Nung

25,249,603

7.95

5

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Phang Yeen Hung

25,249,603

7.95

6

Tan Soon Hock

5,605,500

1.76

7

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Thien Chuk Kuen

4,116,900

1.30

No. of Shares

%

No. of Shares

%

8

Thien Chuk Kuen

3,823,900

1.20

135,085,403

42.51

-

-

9

DB (Malaysia) Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

2,448,100

0.77

Phang Nyie Lin

25,249,603

7.95

*210,834,212

66.35

10

2,155,300

0.68

Phang Yeen Nung

25,249,603

7.95

-

-

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Chee Sai Mun

Phang Yeen Aun

25,249,603

7.95

-

-

11

Ronie Tan Choo Seng

2,000,000

0.63

Phang Yeen Hung

25,249,603

7.95

-

-

12

Chee Sai Mun

1,688,100

0.53

13

Chan Huater

1,500,000

0.47

14

Chan Hua Sheng

1,495,000

0.47

15

CGS-CIMB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Yong Thian Fook

1,250,000

0.39

16

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Teh Kian Lang

1,219,400

0.38

17

Alliance Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Yong Thian Fook

1,112,800

0.35

18

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Wong Ai Ming

917,700

0.29

Tan Sok Mooi
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TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS AS PER RECORD OF DEPOSITORS
(without aggregating the securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same Depositors)
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No.

Name

No. of Shares Held

%

19

Shazwi Nabila Binti Munavvar Zubaid

650,000

0.20

20

Ting Kong Wee

540,000

0.17

21

Ronie Tan Choo Seng

500,000

0.16

22

Yong Kuet Sang

500,000

0.16

23

Zaliha Christine Binti Abdullah

463,600

0.15

24

Mah Siew Hoe

450,000

0.14

25

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Ngoh Ah Ban

431,000

0.13

26

Wong Yong Wee

401,500

0.13

27

HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
-Pledged Securities Account for Lau Jee Hong

400,000

0.13

28

Yeap Sie Chung

400,000

0.13

29

Chan Hong Fook

395,600

0.12

30

Tan Poh Yan

386,300

0.12

270,934,515

85.27
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